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The Royal National Agricultural and Industrial
Association of Queensland (RNA) is an
independent, not-for-profit member-based
association that has freehold title to the iconic
Brisbane Showgrounds.
The RNA’s charter, unchanged since its
establishment in 1875, is to promote and
encourage the development of the state’s
agricultural, industrial, manufacturing,
horticultural, pastoral and cultural resources.
It aims to provide a vibrant destination with
leading educational and event facilities and
activities that capture the hearts and minds of
all Queenslanders, from the country to the city.
Governed by 21 elected Councillors, the RNA
represents more than 5,000 members across
Queensland and further afield, many whose
families have been involved with the RNA
for generations.

OUR SERVICE PROMISE TO YOU
You can depend on us to deliver a safe, consistent
and reliable experience for every event and
interaction that aims to ‘delight’.
We listen and adopt a flexible and responsive
approach.
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We use our imagination to deliver inspired and
creative experiences and strive to continually set
the benchmark.
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We care using empathy, enthusiasm and a
customer focussed approach when resolving
issues and concerns with the goal of achieving
superior outcomes.
It’s our job to be responsible for customer
satisfaction and maintain the highest level of
accountability for every moment of contact.

ROYAL QUEENSLAND SHOW [EKKA]
The Royal Queensland Show, fondly known by
Queenslanders as Ekka, is Queensland’s largest and most
loved annual event. It is run by the RNA on behalf of the
community for 10 days each year in August. While providing
entertainment and fun, the show is also the platform for
some serious competition, attracting close to 21,000 entries
across 48 competitions categories each year. International
and national judges – experts in their fields – attend to
judge and award the best in agriculture, fine arts, horse
events, canine and feline, beef and dairy cattle, boer goats,
fleece, woodchop and sawing, poultry and birds, pisciculture
and more. It also provides an important educational focus
for students who compete for awards in art, literature and
multimedia. The Ekka has always been a place for business
to show and sell their wares and this has not changed. Ekka
is Queensland’s biggest and most targeted marketplace with
over 300 retailers.

ROYAL QUEENSLAND FOOD & WINE SHOW
[RQFWS]
Launched in 2009, the Royal Queensland Food and Wine
Show is designed to recognise and reward outstanding
producers and their produce through its nine individual
competitions: Cheese and Dairy Produce, Ice-cream, Gelato
and Sorbet, Beef, Lamb, Wine, Beer and Cider, Smallgoods
and Ham, Sausages and Chocolate. This competition has
grown rapidly in recognition and awareness throughout the
industry and is known as Queensland’s premier food and
wine competition.

ROYAL INTERNATIONAL CONVENTION
CENTRE & BRISBANE SHOWGROUNDS
VENUES
The Brisbane Showgrounds is a venue hire business which
hosts about 150 events each year, including music festivals,
lifestyle exhibitions and sporting matches, across its 22
hectares.
The Royal International Convention Centre is Australia’s
newest convention centre. The two-level building
features three halls, seven adaptable meeting rooms, two
boardrooms, an open foyer, 140 car parks, and state-of-theart rigging and catering facilities.

PLACE MAKING AT THE BRISBANE
SHOWGROUNDS
Stage two of the RNA’s $2.9 billion Brisbane Showgrounds
regeneration project is underway with more project
milestones expected in 2014/2015. The Royal International
Convention Centre was delivered in stage one of this major
urban renewal project for Brisbane, opening for business
one year ago on 2 March 2013.
The regeneration will see the showgrounds evolve into a
thriving and lively Brisbane precinct day and night, all year
round, while still maintaining its renowned and distinctive
rural heritage and character. The Ekka will remain a major
annual event and with better facilities, the Brisbane
Showgrounds will continue to attract a range of music,
corporate and industry festivals and events.

OUR CUSTOMER SERVICE
PHILOSOPHY
“We create happiness through
experiences that exceed our
customers’ expectations.”
At the end of the day, making people happy is what we do.
Whether our guest is coming to Ekka, a breakfast event at
the Royal International Convention Centre or a music festival
at the Brisbane Showgrounds, we want their experience to
be memorable in a good way! RNA staff follow these simple
customer service guidelines every day:
Safety: watching out for your customers, taking precautions
and always being aware of what’s going on.
Courtesy: treating every customer as a VIP – a very
important and individual person.
Detail: recognising you are always “on show” –
professionalism, knowledge and focus that always fit the role
you were hired for.
Improvement: doing your work effectively, without waste
and continuously looking for ways to improve.
RNA ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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WHAT WE DO…
OUR BUSINESS FOCUS

03

DELIVERING
OUR STRATEGY

YEAR IN REVIEW

Delivering our strategy

The RNA’s turnover for 2013 was
$28.3 million, an increase of 19.5 per cent
from the previous 12 months revenue of
$23.7 million.

2013 marked year one of the RNA’s three
year business strategy for sustainable
growth.

This result was predominantly due to a 45 per cent
increase in revenue from events at the Royal International
Convention Centre (Royal ICC) and the Brisbane
Showgrounds precinct. In 2013 event revenue, excluding
the Ekka, totalled $11.5 million, an increase of $3.4 million
from $7.9 million in 2012.
For the fourth consecutive year, more than 400,000 people
attended the Ekka with turnover totalling $15.2 million, an
increase of $1 million from the previous 12 months. Gate
receipts increased by more than nine per cent from $6
million in 2012 to $6.6 million for this year.
Now in our fourth year of the 15-year $2.9 billion Brisbane
Showgrounds Regeneration Project, 2013 marked the start
of operations for the Royal ICC. The RNA also invested
$7.7 million in the adjoining Plaza area which was used for
the first time at the Ekka.
In line with the RNA’s long term business strategy and
planned investment in the start-up of the Royal ICC, the
association recorded a deficit for 2013 of $10.6 million.
This result is impacted by recognition of the Royal ICC
loan interest of $3.5 million (funded through the RNA
Development Fund) and $5 million in depreciation
(non-cash flow item). After taking into account these items,
the recorded trading deficit for the RNA was $2.2 million.
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Residential sales to the end of December 31, 2013 and the
start of construction of the first commercial building results
in projected future revenue of approximately $17 million as
part of regeneration project earnings. This is not accounted
for in this year’s reported deficit.
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As the association moves into the fifth year of the
regeneration project, the RNA remains in a strong long
term position considering the market value of its land
and associated assets and future redevelopment project
earnings.

The focus of this year has been on establishing a solid
framework for success, improving our processes and
operating practices and building workplace expertise.
We’ve also identified and pursued new and creative
opportunities that complement the RNA’s charter and
mission.
The RNA continues to pursue three key growth areas:
■■

■■

■■

The Royal Queensland Show event (Ekka) and
competition platform (RQS and RQFWS);
The conference and exhibition business including
the Royal International Convention Centre, adjoining
Plaza and showground venues; and
Place making - the creation of a new urban precinct
for Brisbane with the introduction of residential, retail
and commercial businesses.

YEAR 1

2013

Establishing, developing & creating

YEAR 2

2014

Consolidating, refining, performing

YEAR 3

2015

Evolving, efficiencies, improvement

Place making

To do this we need to broaden the usage and appeal of the
showgrounds outside of Ekka and position it as a desirable
place to live, work and enjoy all year round.
A first step in the place making strategy has been to rename
the showgrounds. Brisbane Showgrounds replaces the RNA
Showgrounds name, providing a recognisable and unifying
brand for the entire precinct and its uses.
To further understand and define future development
and activation of the Brisbane Showgrounds precinct,
4 pillars were penned to ensure stakeholders have a clear
understanding of what is important to Queenslanders
and what should continue to define the design and use
of the space.
■■

■■

■■

■■

Modern History – preserving our rich heritage
while embracing new life, energy and modern living.
Paddock to Palate – promotion, understanding
and enjoyment of Queensland’s best produce, food
and wine.
Hyperlocal – a well-defined community; village feel;
rural values embedded in an urban environment.
Eclectic space – unexpected, energetic and
expressive. A place of exchange, creativity, experience
and vibrancy.

19 %
Increase RNA turnover

45 %
showground Event revenue

$1 MILLION
increase Ekka turnover

400,000
people attended Ekka for 4th
year in a row

14 Awards
international awards
For Ekka’s media, marketing
and education campaigns
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Creating a new urban precinct for the people of
Queensland and Brisbane City is an important part of the
RNA’s business diversification plan. The principal aim is to
ensure the Royal Queensland Show (Ekka) remains at its
original birthplace and continues to grow.
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PRESIDENT’S
REPORT
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PRESIDENT’S REPORT

In our rich and diverse
138 year history, the
RNA has needed to
adapt to changing
demographics,
technology, industry,
business streams
and community
expectations.
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With almost a century and a half of
generational change, the Brisbane
Showgrounds has remained a constant
feature in an evolving city, known for
its magnificent ten day event in August
each year. This year has seen the start
of an exciting journey for the RNA
and our iconic showgrounds, as it too
begins to grow and engage
with the community around it.
It is a philosophy in which the
association has invested heavily;
particularly when construction first
began on stage one of our legacy
building $2.9 billion Brisbane
Showgrounds Regeneration Project.
2013 symbolised a year where our
vision for this world-class project
started to take shape. It was a year
which enabled the community to
experience and see first-hand how
the regeneration of our showgrounds
precinct was starting to emerge.

After almost two years of construction,
the Showbag Pavilion was transformed
into the stunning heritage designed
Royal International Convention Centre
(Royal ICC) which opened for business
in March. With the adjoining Plaza
area utilised for the first time at the
Royal Queensland Show (Ekka), our
visitors were able to experience and
appreciate the first class facilities on
offer. The Royal ICC and Plaza facilities
featured a new Fashion and Fine Food
Pavilion on the upper level; agricultural
pavilion and canine showcase on the
lower level; and dog judging arena on
The Plaza.

“2013 symbolised a
year where our vision
for this world class
regeneration project
started to take shape”

These project milestones reiterated
to the public how the regeneration
was enhancing the annual Ekka
through better facilities which make
for a more enjoyable experience. Our
project partner Lend Lease also met
its desired pre-sales targets for The
Green apartments and Kings Gate
Commercial Tower with construction
given the green light. These are the
next major works in the regeneration
project and are creating much interest.

2013 also marked the reinvention
of the Ekka’s entertainment offering
– particularly the popular nighttime program. The RNA invested an
additional $500,000 in a new night
entertainment production, which
received positive feedback from
patrons and resulted in the Main
Arena stands at capacity each night.
A dedicated ‘plan ahead, buy early
and save’ campaign saw increased
ticket pre-sales for Ekka and perfect
weather attract more than 400,000
people through the gates.
Since our first show in 1876, the
RNA remains humbled to stage
Queensland’s biggest and most
loved event on behalf of the
community each year.

To achieve this takes the commitment
of more than 800 volunteers, 500 staff
and the dedication of our 21 member
RNA Council. I would like to sincerely
thank my fellow councillors for their
invaluable efforts and enthusiasm and
pay tribute to the association’s staff,
volunteers, judges and stewards for
their hard work throughout the year.
I look forward to another productive
and exciting year ahead as the
regeneration project continues to
change the Showgrounds precinct for
the better and welcome people and
activity on a daily basis.

David Thomas
PRESIDENT
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The heritage Gatehouse was raised
and restored to its former glory and
relocated closer to The Main Arena
while the adjoining Governor’s Court
area was also embraced by the public
during the show.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REPORT

The RNA continues to pursue three key
growth areas – The Royal Queensland
Show (Ekka); the conference and
exhibition business including the Royal
International Convention Centre (Royal
ICC), adjoining Plaza and showground
venues; and place making which
focuses on the creation of a new
urban precinct for Brisbane with the
introduction of residential, retail and
commercial businesses.
The RNA’s turnover for 2013 increased
by 19 per cent to $28.3 million, mainly
due to a 45 per cent increase in our out
of show event revenue. The opening of
our new Royal ICC in March was the
major factor in attracting new business.
The Royal ICC achieved revenue
targets for its first nine months of
operation, attracting three international
conferences and close to 100 local and
national festivals and corporate events.

“Our five-star service
has resulted in
excellent feedback”
Our staff have delivered exceptional
service, which coupled with our unique
conference facilities, helped secure
repeat and new business for Brisbane’s
newest convention centre. The team is
tracking well against its targets for 2014,
having already contracted 74 per cent
of its 2014 budget just two months into
the year.
In line with the RNA’s long term business
strategy and planned investment in the
start-up of the Royal ICC, the association
recorded a deficit for 2013 of $10.6
million. This result is impacted by
recognition of the Royal ICC loan
interest of $3.5 million (funded through
the RNA Development Fund) and
$5 million in depreciation (non-cash
flow item). After taking into account
these items, the recorded trading deficit
for the RNA was $2.2 million. Residential
sales to the end of December 31, 2013
and the start of construction of the first
commercial building results in projected
future revenue of approximately $17
million as part of regeneration project
earnings. This is not accounted for in
this year’s reported deficit.
For the fourth year in a row 400,000
people flocked to the annual Ekka with
turnover for the show increasing by
$1 million with gate receipts increasing
by almost 10 per cent. The Ekka also
took out 14 international awards,
including Best in Show, for its media
and communications; marketing and
education campaigns.

Significant changes have also
been made to the way the RNA
works internally by introducing
greater efficiencies, streamlining
and modernising our processes
and procedures and improving
communication and collaboration.
We have sought to establish a high
performing team, with significant
experience and expertise in key areas
of asset management; people and
culture; finance; communications;
catering; venue sales and operations;
and project management.
Significant work has been done this
year in training our staff to deliver
service excellence which has resulted
in great feedback from our Royal ICC
customers and Ekka visitors. Our RNA
service philosophy is – ‘We create
happiness through experiences that
exceed our customer’s expectations.’
I would like to thank our valued
sponsors, partners, volunteers, judges
and stewards and our 5,000 plus
membership for their support over
the past 12 months. Thank you also to
the RNA Council and President David
Thomas who have provided guidance
and support to me and the entire team.
I would like to congratulate the RNA
staff for their efforts and commitment
over the past twelve months and look
forward to a busy and rewarding year
ahead.

Brendan Christou
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
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The RNA has established
a clear three year strategy
primarily focused on
diversifying the RNA’s
revenue streams. 2013
marked year one of this plan
with a focus on establishing
the groundwork for positive
growth, creation of new
opportunities, founding a
strong customer service
commitment and a positive
internal workplace culture.
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YOUR EKKA

ROYAL QUEENSLAND SHOW

OUR VISION ...
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is to ensure the continued success
of Queensland’s most iconic event a high quality, contemporary event,
which celebrates and maintains
its traditions and appeals to local,
national and international markets.
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Our objective is to…
Promote agricultural and industrial products to local,
national and international visitors through the staging
of the Royal Queensland Show.
Provide a high quality, high value for money Royal
Queensland Show experience, through interactive
education, entertainment and competitions.
Deliver a Royal Queensland Show in an environment
that is safe, accessible and sustainable.

OVERVIEW
The Royal Queensland Show (Ekka) is the proudest and most
loved community event in Queensland. For the fourth year
running, more than 400,000 people came through the gates
to see the best of Queensland - from the city to the country.
There certainly was ‘more Ekka than ever’ in 2013. Not
only were there Queensland’s favourite pastimes like the
Woodchopping and Sawing Competition, the much loved
Animal Nursery and an abundance of Ekka Strawberry
Sundaes, we also welcomed new performances from
the Queensland Ballet and Opera Queensland and the
spectacular night show, Ekka IgNites 360.

“For 136 years the Ekka has
celebrated all that is great about
Queensland and from the very
beginning it has embraced ‘change’,
acting as a showcase for new,
different and exciting initiatives,
developments, competitions and
entertainment year after year.”

The Ekka is a salute to the state’s best in agriculture,
industry, entertainment and achievement. It is the true
heartbeat of Queensland.

REINVIGORATED NIGHT TIME
PROGRAM WOWS CROWDS
The must see attraction this year was the brand new nighttime entertainment Ekka IgNites 360. From the first Friday
of show, the Main Arena was transformed into a world-class
stage, attracting capacity crowds in the RNA’s grandstands
each evening.

“70% of Ekka Showgoers stated
that the night time entertainment
was important or extremely
important in making their decision
to attend the Ekka.”

Our market research identified the night-time program
was a key driver to attendance and one of the Ekka’s major
attractions. As such the RNA decided to invest $500,000
dollars into revamping the night show which saw the Main
Arena come to life across five stages. Five extra generators
were needed to power Ekka IgNites 360 to ensure it ran
smoothly.
Every seat in the arena had a first class view of the night
time extravaganza that showcased rock concert sound, 15
firework platforms, fire dancers, laser lights, water fountains,
speed bike and monster truck action and world-class
performers.

RNA ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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This professionally produced show, with headline pop
sensation Ricki-Lee Coulter, surprised even the most
seasoned Ekka goer. The RNA was delighted with the
bumper crowds and overwhelmingly enthusiastic response
to the new program, which brought together the best
elements of the country and modern technology.
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ROYAL QUEENSLAND SHOW
[CONTINUED]

A HELPING HAND

INTERNATIONAL AWARDS

The Ekka is Queensland’s largest community
event and remains committed to helping out
those less fortunate through a number of
charities and initiatives.

The Royal Queensland Show took home the prestigious
Best in Show title, along with 13 other awards, at the 2013
International Association of Fairs & Expositions Awards
(IAFE Awards).

Every year the RNA provides free entry
to charity and community groups across
Queensland through its Friends of Ekka
program. Many would not be able to visit
the show without this assistance.

The 2013 Ekka Media, Communications and Marketing
campaigns won 11 of these awards including gold in
the Printed Newsletter category, Media Guide/ Press
Kit category, Best Individual Social Media Idea or Effort
category, Promotion Event category and in the Mobile
Campaign category.

The Prince Charles Hospital Foundation
celebrated 25 years of funding research
through Strawberry Sundaes in 2013. Since
1989 the Foundation has raised $1.55 million
from selling Strawberry Sundaes at the Ekka.
The Ekka continued with its tradition of taking
a slice of the show to the Royal Brisbane
Children’s Hospital. Each year our entertainers
and showbag exhibitors give freely their time
and products to bring a little Ekka joy to the
wards, 2013 was no exception.
■■

Over 135,000 Strawberry Sundaes sold

■■

$188,000 raised for medical research

■■

2800 volunteers

■■

■■

9 tonnes of strawberries used,
equivalent to 36,000 250g punnets
19,000L of cream used

The Ekka School Garden Competition and The Courier Mail
Learning Fun Pavilion, both new to the 2013 show, took
home gold in the Agricultural Awards section at the IAFE
Awards.
The IAFE conducts contests for its members throughout the
United States, Canada, United Kingdom and Australia to
recognise and reward excellence. This is testament to how
the Royal Queensland Show ranks on the world stage.

EKKA WON’T BREAK THE BANK
There has been continued emphasis on families being able
to enjoy Ekka and all it has to offer on a budget.
Queensland families once again responded well to Ekka’s
“Plan Ahead, Buy Early and Save” message with online
ticket pre-sales for the Ultimate Family Bundle up 400 per
cent on 2012.
Families saved up to $75 by buying the Ultimate Family
Bundle online before Ekka started on 8 August 2013.

TWO FULL WEEKENDS OF EKKA
RNA ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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Queensland’s iconic Ekka will run across two weekends
from 2014 onwards.
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Ekka’s new dates from Friday 8 August to Sunday 17
August means Queenslanders and visitors will have more
opportunity than ever before to experience the magic of the
Ekka over two full weekends. The show previously ran on a
Thursday to Saturday program.
This is an exciting change for the RNA, Ekka competitors,
exhibitors and the people of Queensland. It will make the
Ekka more accessible to visitors, providing families and
those who work with two full weekends to enjoy all aspects
of the show.

EKKA AND THE ENVIRONMENT
During Ekka thousands of livestock and show animals
descended on the Brisbane Showgrounds with huge
amounts of sand and sawdust used as bedding in their stalls.
After the 2013 Ekka the RNA removed and recycled more
than 4,390m2 of sawdust and sand, equivalent to more than
two Olympic sized swimming pools. The sawdust and sand
was reused and recycled for landscape soil supplies and
sugarcane field restoration across Queensland.

ROYAL ICC A SHOW STOPPER
For the first time Ekka guests were able to experience the
state-of-the-art Royal International Convention Centre
(Royal ICC) and Plaza. After being out of action for the
2011 and 2012 Ekka, the Royal ICC and Plaza came to life.
The Royal ICC housed some of Ekka’s largest and most
popular events and competitions including the sophisticated
new gourmet food and fashion precinct – the Fashion and
Fine Food Pavilion – on the upper level and the dog show,
agriculture and horticulture pavilions on the ground floor.

GREEN FACTS
■■

■■

■■

■■

In 2013, the RNA doubled the amount
of cardboard that was recycled during
Ekka (a 103.5% improvement), this was
achieved through additional rubbish
stations and redesigning the waste
management collection process
The RNA had nearly 1,000 wheelie bins
to collect rubbish and recyclable materials
during Ekka
RNA tradespeople walked on average
over 38 kilometres each day - with nearly
100 tradespeople and support staff this
equates to more than 52,000 kilometres
walked during Ekka 2013
Over 23 tonnes of cow and horse manure
was removed each day of the Ekka
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Ekka guests were able to see first-hand the progress made
in stage one of the RNA’s $2.9 billion regeneration project
while enjoying the upgraded facilities.
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YOUR EKKA

ROYAL QUEENSLAND SHOW
[CONTINUED]

IN THE NEWS
The Ekka is known to attract visiting celebrities, eager to
mix with their fan base; and as an election year 2013 was
no exception. Prime Minister Tony Abbott visited the Ekka
and treated his daughters to the popular Ekka strawberry
sundaes. Channel Nine’s Today Show hosted its popular
morning show from the Brisbane Showgrounds with
guests getting the chance to rub shoulders with host Karl
Stefanovic while 4BC radio broadcast live from the Ekka
daily. The Ekka Media Unit generated widespread coverage
across television, print, radio, online and social media
forums in the lead-up to and during the 10 days of show.
The Ekka reached millions of viewers, listeners and readers
throughout local, state, national and international audiences.

“Competitions lie at
the heart of Ekka.”
HEALTH AND SAFETY

RNA ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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Mandatory Hendra Vaccination
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In the interests of health and safety, the RNA made
the decision this year to introduce mandatory Hendra
vaccination for horses competing at the show. The RNA is
committed to ensuring all measures are taken to limit the
spread of Hendra virus. As improvements are made with
the vaccine and research studies are concluded, we expect
the decision to vaccinate will become an easier one for
horse owners and breeders.

TOUGH COMPETITION
Built on tradition, competitions stem back to the first show
held in 1876 which included horses, cattle, sheep, dogs,
poultry, horticulture and education.
This year competitors travelled from across the nation to
take part in 42 competition sections, across 11,000 classes
which attracted over 21,000 entries.
The 2013 show attracted more than 1,500 first time
competitors and featured the introduction of a new Breed
Display Competition and rally obedience classes for
canines, extra horse classes and open classes in the Sheep
Competition. The show is continually expanding
and evolving.

E.Coli (STEC)
At the 2014 Ekka, the RNA will implement a series of
measures in our animal exhibits to minimise risk factors
associated with E.Coli (STEC). Several days after this year’s
show closed, the RNA was notified by Queensland Health
of an E.Coli (STEC) outbreak. As this particular bacterium
is highly infectious, more than 50 people were indirectly
affected and some were hospitalised with the illness.
This was very distressing for the families involved and
deeply concerned all at the RNA. We have been working
closely with health and biosecurity authorities, as well
as independent experts from Australia and the USA, to
better understand the scientific research and world’s best
practice in this area. Although this bacterium is commonly
found in animals and a complete eradication can never be
guaranteed, hand washing remains the best preventative
and next year’s show will incorporate a series of improved
and comprehensive measures.

WHAT A ‘SHOW’ LEGEND
Kevin Hickey, who hasn’t missed a show since 1933, was named as the RNA’s Show Legend
for 2013.
Mr Hickey, who is a third generation dairy farmer, has competed at the Royal Queensland
Show for the past 60 years with his dairy cattle. 2013 was no exception, with Mr Hickey
competing once again as well as assisting the RNA in the organisation of the Dairy Section,
the Grand Parade and milking competitions.

GLORIOUS FOOD
It was a foodie haven at the 2013 Ekka with the emergence of a new gourmet food
precinct. Along with the Woolworths Fresh Food Pavilion there was the new Fashion
and Fine Food Pavilion and Agricultural Pavilion, both located in the Royal ICC.

NEW FAVOURITE

A FIVE-STAR EXPERIENCE

An American show favourite, the funnel cake,
came to the 2013 Ekka for the first time.

The much loved Royal Queensland Steakhouse had
a new home in 2013, the Royal ICC.

Ekka guests could not get enough of the popular
sweet treat which is synonymous with North
American carnivals and fairs. More than 2500
Funnel Cakes were sold at the stand located
in the Royal ICC.

Guests enjoyed a menu dominated by local produce,
including award winning meats.
Manning Valley Naturally, which won Grand
Champion Beef at the prestigious Royal Queensland
Food and Wine Show, proved a popular choice.
The Royal Queensland Steakhouse was opened for
lunch and dinner daily and provided a fine dining
experience for all.
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Ekka guests were able to watch and learn from expert chefs, indulge in fresh seafood
and fine wines, and dine on Australia’s best beef and lamb as awarded in this year’s
Royal Queensland Food and Wine Show.
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YOUR EKKA

ROYAL QUEENSLAND SHOW
[CONTINUED]

IN THE CLASSROOM

LIGHTS, CAMERA, ACTION!

Queensland’s largest classroom, Ekka, continued to inspire,
educate and amaze thousands of students in 2013. Students
were able to enjoy and participate in educational activities
and competitions, including competing in the Award
winning Ekka School Garden Competition and visiting
The Courier Mail Learning Fun Pavilion, both new in 2013.

The fast paced film contest, Race Around Ekka, proved to
be a winner once again with secondary film students.
Students worked in small teams to plan, script, locate,
perform in, direct, shoot, edit and produce an ad while
working against the clock. This year students were asked
to include the tagline “Look up and Live. Get a buzz
out of Ekka, not electricity” which resulted in some very
creative entries. Students from Stretton State College and
Indooroopilly State High School took out the awards this year.
The competition’s formula has been so successful that other
Royal Shows around the country have emulated similar
contests at their own shows.

BUDDING GARDENERS
Dozens of primary school students got their hands dirty this
year at the first ever Ekka School Garden Competition.
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Schools were given the opportunity to design, grow and
build their own garden plots to display at Ekka which had to
follow the theme ‘Australian History’.
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First prize went to the Gatton Garden Group from Gatton
State School who based their theme around early settlers
of Gatton and their sustainable ways of living.

THE COURIER MAIL LEARNING
FUN PAVILION
The Courier Mail Learning Fun Pavilion was a sensory
overload of colours, sounds and activity ensuring students
could interact and engage.
Visitors to the pavilion could cook up a storm with the Kids
in the Kitchen, test our local water supply with SEQ Water,
talk to a palaeontologist about dinosaurs and even visit the
worlds’ largest LEGO cruise ship.

2675 1809
CANINE

15,000+ Oysters and BUCKETS
OF prawns from the seafood
and wine bar and Royal
Queensland Steak House

2,000 +
Funnel Cakes

2,000+ Steaks from the Royal
Queensland Steak House

1,500+ brave Ekka-goers
attempted to eat the world’s
hottest chilli

180,000+
The good old Dagwood Dog
is still a big Ekka favourite

In the classroom
■

■

9630

Students attended on
Ekka School Days

64 Teams participated in

1696 2675
horse

1250 1178
LED STEER

821 Students competed in the

Ekka Learning Trail Competition
■

41Schools entered the Education On
Show competition - a 50% increase on
2012.

PHOTOGRAPHY

1142 1004
Stud Beef

921

Creative Art

and Craft

Painting and

Drawing

774

Cookery

Queensland’s
Largest Marketplace

505
327
125

Race Around Ekka

■

Woodchop
and Sawing

288
92

Allocated
retail spaces

Companies
Food and beverage
outlets
Commercial
outlets including
19 showbag stands

Rides and games
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135,000+ iconic Ekka Strawberry
Sundaes

POULTRY

Ekka’s largest competitions in 2013

EKKA Food favourites
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ROYAL QUEENSLAND FOOD & WINE SHOW
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OUR VISION ...
is to create the most prestigious
and highest quality food and
wine competition in Australia.

OVERVIEW
Over five years the Royal Queensland Food and Wine
Show (RQFWS) has surpassed all expectations, with an
ambition to become Australia’s premier food and wine
competition.
From the establishment of the RNA 138 years ago, the
organisation has always been committed to unearthing,
celebrating and promoting Australia’s best produce.
This year the RQFWS attracted more than 2400 entries
across seven major competitions. The seven competitions
are made up of the Cheese and Dairy Produce Show,
Ice-Cream, Gelato and Sorbet Competition, Branded
Lamb Competition, Branded Beef Competition,
Royal Queensland Wine Show (RQWS), Sausage King
Competition and for the first time the Ham, Bacon
and Smallgoods Competition.

MEAT LOVERS
For the first time, the RQFWS teamed up with the
Australian Meat Industry Council (AMIC) to hold the
2013 Ham, Bacon and Smallgoods Competition.

More than 1,600 wines were entered
in the 2013 Royal Queensland Wine
Show from 264 wineries across
Australia.

Queensland’s great independent local butchers were on
display as a panel of industry judges worked their way
through the seven competition categories – leg ham on
the bone, boneless leg ham, cooked corned silverside,
bacon rashers, pre-cooked sausage, kabana and cheerios.
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AMIC has been running the competition for more than
20 years. Cheerios and kabana were added to the line-up
for the first time this year at the RQFWS.
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A PASSION FOR PRODUCE

ROYAL QUEENSLAND FOOD & WINE SHOW
[CONTINUED]

WINE SHOW SUCCESS
The Royal Queensland Wine Show (RQWS) once again attracted top winemakers from across
the country in 2013. More than 1,600 wines were entered into the 2013 competition coming
from 264 Australian wineries. Top honours went to South Australia’s Shingleback D Block
Reserve Cabernet Sauvignon 2010 which won the prestigious Champion Wine of Show,
while another South Australian success story, Block 14 Shiraz 2012 by The Lane Vineyard,
was the winner of The Stodart Trophy for the Best Gold Medal winning Young Dry Red Wine.
Queensland’s Golden Grove Estate was the highest scoring Queensland wine exhibitor,
earning a Gold Medal for its Malbec. Meanwhile, each year the RNA provides a wine bursary
where a Queensland winemaker and student winemaker attend a week long immersion in an
Australian wine region. The 2013 Queensland Winemaker Excellence Bursary was awarded to
Andy Williams and the Student Winemaking Excellence Bursary was taken out by Tullawong
High School student Kayla Sibley.

“This year’s
competitions
experienced
significant
increases in
entries – up
89% in lamb
products and
32% in beef
products.”

THE GRASS IS GREENER
Grass fed beef reigned supreme at the nation’s most prestigious Beef Competition.
Wingham Beef Exports’ Manning Valley Naturally grass fed beef impressed the judging panel,
taking out the Grand Champion Branded Beef Award, over the often popular Wagyu, at the
RQFWS.
New South Wales lamb producers Country Fresh Nationwide were crowned Australia’s best
lamb for the second year in a row in the Branded Lamb competition at the RQFWS.
Judges cooked, tested and tasted almost 20 entries to ultimately award the best lamb on the
Australian market.
The defending lamb champion again nudged out other entries due to its high flavour profile.

NEW PANEL FOR THE ROYAL QUEENSLAND WINE SHOW
The Royal Queensland Wine Show (RQWS) appointed a new panel of judges for the 2013
competition.
Chief Judge PJ Charteris, who has an outstanding reputation not only as one of Australia’s
leading winemakers but for his support of the local and national wine industry, led a new
panel of judges in 2013.
The panel reinvigorated the judging process and ensured broader experience and a lower
median age than in previous years at the RQWS.
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These changes were made to ensure the premier event represented all aspects of the
industry including winemakers, wine authorities and the media.
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“The RNA is committed to keeping the RQFWS at the
forefront of food and wine shows across the country”

NUMBER OF ENTRIES

299
CHEESE AND DAIRY PRODUCE

2013 CHAMPIONS
CHEESE AND DAIRY PRODUCE
Dairy Australia Grand Champion Dairy
Product of Show
Rowefords Blue
Berrys Creek Gourmet Cheese

194

ICE-CREAM, GELATO AND SORBET

ICE-CREAM, GELATO AND SORBET

18
BRANDED LAMB

Oppenheimer Grand Champion Ice-Cream,
Gelato or Sorbet of Show
Very Chocolate
Sugo Mi

BRANDED BEEF
The John Kilroy Cha Cha Char Champion
Branded Beef of Show
Manning Valley Naturally
Wingham Beef Exports

36

BRANDED LAMB
BRANDED BEEF

1671
WINE

Branded Lamb Trophy Winner
New England Gold
Country Fresh Nationwide

WINE
The Courier-Mail Trophy
(Grand Champion Wine of Show)
D Block Reserve 2010
Shingleback

156
42
SAUSAGE KING
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BACON, HAM AND SMALLGOODS
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OUR VISION ...
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is to deliver distinctive convention
and events venues, providing
international standards of service
excellence within a vibrant destination.
Our objective is to…
Manage an events venue that maximises the out of show returns
of RNA assets
Create a culture of service excellence throughout the organisation
Provide a broad range of unique indoor and outdoor venues in the
historical Brisbane Showgrounds
Manage an events venue precinct in an environment that is safe,
accessible and sustainable.

OVERVIEW
2013 marked a precinct milestone - the
unveiling of the $59 million state-of-theart Royal International Convention Centre
(Royal ICC) and its accompanying open
space, the 7,000m2 Plaza.
Unlike any other venue in Australia, the Royal ICC is
strategically positioned beside a number of distinctive
indoor and outdoor venues and spaces including the
Brisbane Showgrounds’ 20,000 seat Main Arena, large
scale festival and amusement areas and stables and
accommodation for large animals.
In its first ten months of operation the Royal ICC attracted
130,00 people to the venue and held 126 events including
three international conventions, major national events,
trade shows, banquets, school and corporate functions.

ROYAL ICC FACTS

■■

■■

■■

The two-level Royal ICC building features
three flexible halls, seven adaptable
meeting rooms, two boardrooms and
open foyers
A 1,200m2 commercial kitchen which
features world-class catering facilities
including the latest designed Air-O-Steam
Combi Ovens, capable of serving 1,200
plates in 20 minutes and a computerised
system which enables us to track and
monitor the quality of food being served
It fronts a revitalised 7,000m2 Plaza,
providing an additional 1,500m2 of
exhibition space for indoor/outdoor
events
A unique feature of the centre is its
world-class custom built operable ceiling
grid system, the only one of its kind in
Australia
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YOUR VENUE

ROYAL INTERNATIONAL CONVENTION CENTRE
[CONTINUED]

OPEN FOR BUSINESS

NEW PLAZA venue

The Royal ICC officially opened on
2 March 2013 and secured a number of
high profile events including the PWC Post
Budget Breakfast, Queensland Tourism
Awards, Brisbane Boat Show, Brisbane
Maserati Launch, and the 58th Walkley
Awards for Excellence in Journalism.

Adjoining the new Royal ICC is the 7,000m2 landscaped
open Plaza which was unveiled to the public at the 2013
Ekka and played host to the dog show judging arena.

STUNNING DESIGN
Designed by Cox Rayner Architects and constructed
by Lend Lease, the Royal ICC is characterised by
sophisticated, multi-functional and flexible spaces which
can accommodate up to 3,000 people.
The design celebrates the building’s history through the
conservation and enhancement of the existing heritage
facades built in 1937 and a modern interpretation of the
previous saw-tooth roof profile.
The timber from the original Industrial Pavilion came from
large ironwood trees sourced locally and has been lovingly
restored and used throughout the new Royal ICC.
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MENUS WITH A DIFFERENCE
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Driven by the region’s abundance of quality local produce,
Royal ICC’s expert chefs create seasonal menus that
feature Queensland fruit and vegetables, aged Granite
Belt beef, sustainably farmed poultry, freshly-caught
seafood and a range of boutique Queensland and
Australian wines.
The Royal ICC has used its unique connection to local
farmers and producers, through the RNA, to showcase
the freshest Australian ingredients and the finest cuisine.

The Plaza and Porte Cochere provides a stunning entrance
to the Royal ICC and has been utilised for large scale
outdoor trade shows including the Brisbane Boat Show,
Caravan and Camping Show and the 4 x 4 Tinnie and
Tackle Show.

ROYAL ICC GOES GLOBAL
The Royal ICC was unveiled to the global meetings
and events industry when it made its debut at IMEX
Europe and IMEX America during 2013. The aim was
to showcase Australia’s newest convention centre and
attract international trade shows and conferences which
we succeeded in doing. The Royal ICC hosted three
international events in its first nine months of operation.

MAJOR INTERNATIONAL CONFERENCES
more than 370 delegates descended on the Royal ICC in
August 2013 to attend the first Developing Unconventional
Gas (DUG) conference held outside of the United States.
The DUG conferences are well known for their world-class
programs and content. DUG Australia featured the best
senior-level speakers from the oil and gas industry and
market-leading insight on unconventional resources and
their development in Australia.
The DUG conference will be returning to the Royal ICC
in 2014.

Moving forward
Within three years, the Royal ICC is expected to attract
more than 220 events annually, generating tens of millions
of dollars for the Brisbane economy.
The focus is on introducing new clients to the venue
through site visits, participating in familiarisation
programs, entertaining clients including conducting chef’s
table luncheons in the main kitchen. It’s about creating a
fantastic experience to ensure repeat business.

2130 GUESTS
PwC Post-Budget Breakfast

1060 GUESTS
Radio Conference & Australian
Commercial Radio Awards
Brisbane Marketing’s Business Network Evening

1752 GUESTS
Frontline Dinner

921 GUESTS
walkley and clarion Awards

715 guests
LNP State Convention

648 guests
Qld Export Awards

UDIA Queensland Awards for Excellence
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Churchie 2013 Rugby Test Match Luncheon
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OUR VISION ...
is to be Brisbane’s preferred
destination for live music,
experience and expression,
defined
by
four
pillars
that capture the spirit and
heritage of the showgrounds.
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Modern History - preserving our rich heritage while
embracing new life, energy and modern living
Paddock to palate – Promotion and enjoyment of
Queensland’s best produce, food and wine
Eclectic spaces – Unexpected, expressive and energetic;
offering a blend of diverse, authentic and creative activities
and spaces; a place of exchange and experience.
Village feel in an urban environment – rural values
embedded in an urban space; true community.

OVERVIEW
The 15 year, $2.9 billion Brisbane Showgrounds
regeneration project is the largest Brownfield development
of its kind in Australia and the most significant urban
renewal project in Queensland since South Bank. Featuring
340,000 square metres of new residential, retail and
commercial development with significant open space,
inter-linked green spaces and landscaping, 15,000 people
are expected to live, work and play at the Brisbane
Showgrounds precinct once the project is completed.
One of the key reasons for redeveloping the Brisbane
Showgrounds is to generate year-round vitality throughout
the precinct for use by the community. The regeneration
will preserve the historic character of existing facilities,
like it’s done with the completed Royal ICC, while creating
a new and unique sense of place for all Queenslanders.
Significant planning on the design and retail strategy
for King Street and its surrounding public realm was
undertaken in 2013. King Street will be a newly created
street running from St Paul’s Terrace to Gregory Terrace
for use by pedestrians, cyclists and vehicular traffic. A
feasibility study is underway for a new fresh food market
including a traffic management and carparking strategy.

A NEW NAME FOR
THE SHOWGROUNDS
2013 saw the reinvention and renaming of the iconic RNA
Showgrounds to the Brisbane Showgrounds… same place,
same history and tradition, but with a renewed focus.
The change was needed to create an easily identifiable
and unifying brand for the precinct, which is undergoing
a $2.9 billion regeneration.
Brisbane Showgrounds succinctly captures the core
attributes and uses of the site – from the home of
the much loved Royal Queensland Show (Ekka),
entertainment festivals and events, to the state-of-the-art
Royal International Convention Centre (Royal ICC) and
emerging community of residential, commercial and retail
developments.
The new name and identity will assist in changing the
focus of the showgrounds from a venue to ‘the place’.

“The regeneration project will
combine the site’s rich history
with its future potential.”

“Brisbane Showgrounds is a
precinct designed to give the
community access to an all
year round destination.”
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Construction is now underway on The Green residential
apartments and K1, the first commercial tower in Kings
Gate fronting St Paul’s Terrace. The Lend Lease and
RNA team will be focused on early activation of this area
in 2014 through pop up restaurants and activation of
‘building 12’ in Alexandria Street.
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BRISBANE SHOWGROUNDS
[CONTINUED]

REGENERATION TIMELINE
APR / 2011
Construction began on transforming the
Industrial Pavilion into the world-class
$59 million Royal International
Convention Centre (Royal ICC).

JUL / 2011

STAGE 1 WORKS
2013 marked a number of milestones for
the regeneration project.
The $59 million Royal International Convention Centre was
unveiled to the public and held its first events in March
2013. The 7,000m2 Plaza, which has about 3000 shrubs and
40 established Australian native trees, some up to 8m tall,
was utilised for the first time at Ekka 2013 along with the
Porte-Cochere and restored heritage gatehouse.

Industrial Pavilion roof removed.
Removal of Frank Nicklin Building.

SEP / 2011
Designs of the Lend Lease commercial
development component unveiled.
Work began on related infrastructure.

OCT / 2011
The Green sales suite opened and the
first release of apartments at ‘The Green’
went on sale.

AUG / 2012
Ground floor of Royal ICC opened for
exhibition space at Ekka 2012.

NOV / 2012
RNA staff moved into brand new 950m2
office in Royal ICC.

DEC / 2012
Removal of the RNA Administration Building.
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Construction on the new 7,000m2 $7.7 million
Plaza commenced.
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MAR / 2013
Royal ICC opens for its first events.

OCT / 2013
Construction commenced on K1, the first
commercial tower at Kings Gate commercial
sector and on The Green residential
apartments.

STAGE 2 UNDERWAY
The completion of major stage one developments was
closely followed by the commencement of construction on
a number of new buildings. Building started on K1, the first
of three towers, inside Lend Lease’s Kings Gate commercial
sector and also on The Green, five residential buildings at
the Brisbane Showgrounds precinct.

2014 / 15 PLANNED WORKS *
■■

■■

■■

■■

Mid 2015 - Residents move into
apartments at The Green
Mid 2015 - Kings Gate commercial
sector opens for business
Mid 2015 - Retail precinct on King
Street to have commenced
Late 2015 - Four star hotel opens
on King Street

* PLANNED WORKS ARE INDICATIVE ONLY.

FOUR STAR HOTEL

ROYAL QUEENSLAND MARKET

A 200 room hotel is planned
to support major conference
events at the Royal ICC. The
RNA is currently in due diligence
discussions with a hotel developer,
and subject to the outcome of this
process, we hope construction will
begin after Ekka 2014.

A feasibility study is currently underway to determine the
viability of opening a five day a week, year round fresh
produce market in the heart of the Brisbane Showgrounds.
The Royal Queensland Market will harness the RNA’s strong
connection with agriculture, horticulture and pastoral industries
in Queensland. Similar in style to the very popular Adelaide
Markets, the Royal Queensland Markets would be a new
offering for Brisbane and provide fresh produce at competitive
prices for people to access and enjoy five days a week. Awardwinning produce from the RNA’s annual Royal Queensland
Food and Wine Show Awards will also be available here.

Size

Construction

22 hectares (including Gregory Terrace and
Alexandria Street) representing the largest
Brownfield development of its kind in Australia.
Project includes 340,000m2 of new residential,
commercial and retail buildings, together with
an additional 76,000m2-as envisaged in the
RNA’s Master Plan approved by the ULDA
on RNA retained land.

The project will be progressively delivered over
the 15 year time frame. Works began in April
2011 with major works to the Industrial Pavilion
transforming it into the Royal ICC, which opened
in 2013. The first residential and commercial
buildings are currently underway, while the annual
Royal Queensland Show (Ekka) will continue to
operate throughout the life of the project.

Investment

Support

The project end value including RNA facilities and
new residential/commercial/retail development
is estimated at $2.9 billion. This development is
being funded by Lend Lease and a $65 million loan
from the Queensland Treasury Corporation.

The regeneration of the RNA Showgrounds
has the bi-partisan support of the Queensland
Government, State Opposition, Brisbane City
Council, the Federal Government and Federal
Opposition plus many within Brisbane’s business,
agriculture, industry and community sectors.

Economic benefits /
job creation
The regeneration project is expected to deliver
$300 million per annum in economic benefits to
Queensland, while supporting Brisbane’s future
economic and population growth by creating at
least 2,000 jobs a year over the life of the project.
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UPCOMING WORKS
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BRISBANE SHOWGROUNDS
[CONTINUED]

BRISBANE SHOWGROUNDS THE PLACE TO BE
The Brisbane Showgrounds proved itself as a leading events
venue in 2013 attracting almost 200 events. The people of
Brisbane were able to enjoy International acts like American
superstars Metallica headlining Soundwave, the UK’s Calvin
Harris at Stereosonic and many local artists throughout
the year. Oktoberfest brought the German tradition to
The Marquee while Caravan and Camping brought 71,500
people to the showgrounds.

“The Brisbane Showgrounds is
Brisbane’s biggest indoor /outdoor
events venue, attracting approximately
one million visitors a year.”

A STRONG WORKFORCE
The Brisbane Showgrounds generates thousands
of jobs locally. From the 91 permanent RNA staff
who are based in the Brisbane Showground’s
offices to those who provide goods and services
throughout the year at a number of music
festivals, events and Ekka.
■■

■■
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33 new permanent roles created at the
RNA in 2013
Over 1,260 casual staff for 4 music festivals
In 2013, the RNA partnered with more
than 1,430 local Queensland businesses in
delivering services and events across the
Brisbane Showgrounds, including the Ekka.
More than 60 food and beverage casuals
alone for the Royal ICC

ECO FRIENDLY
In 2013 there was an emphasis on recycling at the Brisbane
Showgrounds.
The RNA significantly improved the amount of materials and
waste that was recycled with a 62% improvement on 2012,
including successfully recycling and re-using organic matter
to form compost and garden mulch for the many plants and
garden beds throughout the Brisbane Showgrounds.

“In 2013 the RNA collected
and recycled 71.4 tonnes
of cardboard and recycled
matter - This recycling effort
is equivalent to saving 184
tonnes of CO2 emissions which
is the equivalent to taking 46
motor vehicles off the road for
a whole year (1 car = 4 tonnes
of CO2e per yr) and is the same
as planting 688 trees (each tree
captures about 268kg of CO2e
over its lifetime)”

THE ICONIC MAIN ARENA
An iconic space at the Brisbane Showgrounds is the Main
Arena which is a heritage-listed multi-million dollar arena,
first built in 1891. This hallowed turf surface has seen all
the greats from Sir Donald Bradman’s test debut in 1928;
to the renowned Livid Music Festival and the much loved
annual Royal Queensland Show (Ekka).
Given the heritage value to Queensland, the protection
and preservation of this traditional RNA facility is important.
The Main Oval received a significant upgrade in 2007 which
included a high-quality StrathAyr system (a grassed ground
surface system) similar to that used in major sporting arenas
throughout Australia and Asia.
The RNA has in place a regular maintenance program to
ensure this important asset’s grass surfaces and systems
are protected.

40,000

30,000

SUPANOVA 2013

LABOUR DAY FESTIVAL

50,000

36,000
OKTOBERFEST 2013

SOUNDWAVE 2013

30,000
STEREOSONIC 2013

25,000
TSXPO 2013

58,000

35,000
NATIONAL 4X4

& OUTDOOR
SHOW & BRISBANE
TINNIE & TACKLE SHOW

CARAVAN &

CAMPING SHOW 2013

41,000+
26,500
PRE-CHRISTMAS

THE SUNDAY MAIL

SUNCORP BANK

BRIDGE TO
BRISBANE 2013

CARAVAN SALE 2013

LARGEST ATTENDED
EVENTS AT BRISBANE
SHOWGROUNDS

In 2013, the RNA uncovered old corridors and change rooms used
by Sir Donald Bradman under the John MacDonald stand, and used
during the 1928 International Cricket Test debut between England
and Australia.
Local media was taken on a cooks tour of the heritage listed clock
tower in the John MacDonald stand which dates back to 1906. Our
multi-faced clock tower is one of the last in Australia with actual
working clock parts.
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LOOKING BACK
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OVERVIEW

Everyone loves a selfie

The RNA understands the importance and popularity of
digital interaction and social media platforms which allow
us to communicate instantly and directly with customers
and stakeholders. Throughout 2013 the RNA embraced
social media across all its brands and interacted with the
public through a number of online campaigns. Facebook
once again proved a hit among Ekka goers with a 75
per cent increase in followers, as was the updated Ekka
website, created specifically for those viewing from a
mobile phone or tablet.

Ekka jumped on to the global phenomenon of “selfies”
encouraging Ekka goers to take a self-portrait of
themselves at the show, upload it to Instagram and
Facebook and use the hashtag #EKKASELFIE. The Ekka
Selfies Competition saw more than 900 photos submitted
and was designed to showcase the different facets of the
show taken by individual Ekka goers, documenting their
fun experiences first hand. The Ekka website had a live
stream of the #Ekkaselfies photos to demonstrate real
people enjoying the Ekka.

Mobile site

#rqws13

Mobile users can now experience all the Ekka website
content in an easy to navigate site specifically designed
for viewing from their mobile phones. From 2011 to 2012
there was a noticeable increase in the number of visitors
to the Ekka site using a mobile device or tablet, so in 2013
a responsive website for mobile users was created to give
the best possible experience while browsing the Ekka site
on a smart phone or tablet. 2013 web traffic was up 52 per
cent on 2012 and online ticket sales increased by 44 per
cent. Over 12 per cent of all online ticket sales were made
using a mobile device.

The Royal Queensland Food and Wine Show embraced
the digital world with open arms in 2013 through social
media platforms including Facebook and Twitter.

The Free Ekka iPhone app was released prior to the
show with the intention to give users the best possible
Ekka experience. Providing customers with an interactive
map of grounds, exclusive offers, a full list of showbags,
events and rides, an itinerary builder and a fully integrated
ticketing system, the Ekka
iPhone app proved to be a
huge success again in 2013
with 26,000 downloads.

Brisbane Showgrounds
online
With the reinvention and renaming of the Brisbane
Showgrounds in 2013, the Brisbane Showgrounds
website was launched. The new design ensures the brand
is correctly promoted online through its logos, colour
scheme and easy to navigate website design.

Media Communication
The Communications Department emphasised the
importance of social media and online news in 2013.
Communications worked directly with the RNA marketing
and digital departments to ensure greater social media
presence which augments all external public relations
and promotional initiatives across RNA brands. As part of
this strategy the RNA’s social media platforms Facebook,
Twitter and The Ekka Buzz blog included customised
news content including video and imagery linking back to
specific brand websites to help drive increased traffic.
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Free Ekka iPhone App

The majority of social media activity for the Royal
Queensland Food and Wine Show was on Twitter, where
there are over 1000 followers. The 2013 Royal Queensland
Wine Show judges and exhibitors were encouraged to
tweet during the show, and incorporate the hashtag
#rqws13, which resulted in a reach of more than 95,000
twitter accounts.
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MISSION, VISION & VALUES

Our Mission

Our vision

Our core values

To celebrate, conserve,
promote and encourage
understanding and
development of the
agricultural, pastoral,
horticultural, industrial,
manufacturing and
cultural resources of the
State of Queensland.

Ongoing successful staging of
Queensland’s largest, oldest and most
loved event – the Royal Queensland
Show (Ekka) – at the Brisbane
Showgrounds.

Customer focus

Creating a more diversified RNA
business and establishing the
Brisbane Showgrounds and the Royal
International Convention Centre as
Queensland’s leading events venue.
Transforming the Brisbane
Showgrounds into a destination –
a vibrant community, cultural, events
precinct where people enjoy playing,
working and living.

We are committed to providing
world-class (five star) service in
everything we do.

Integrity
We always act with integrity and
foster a culture of the highest ethical
standards, trust and honesty.

Respect
We collaborate, communicate openly,
share resources, and consider and
understand the perspective and
contribution of others.

Innovation
We encourage and acknowledge
initiative, innovation and continuous
improvement.

Achievement
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We strive to achieve excellence at
all times. We recognise achievement,
support each other to do our best,
and reward high performance and
efficiency.
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OFFICE
BEARERS

PATRON

HONORARY COUNCILLORS

Her Excellency
Ms Penelope Wensley AC
Governor of Queensland

A G Brimblecombe AM

PRESIDENT
D G Thomas

T M Carew
W T Cummins
V E Edwards OAM
G J Hart AM
W R Lenehan
L K Morris

VICE-PRESIDENTS
D L O’Connor and A G Adnam

HONORARY TREASURER
C J Sinclair

COUNCIL
A D Bassingthwaighte
L J Blumel

L F Robertson
J F Scott OAM
D C Sturrock
M F Talbot
B D Vickers
P F Wadley
A Warby OAM

CHIEF EXECUTIVE
B Christou

R H Douglas
T V Fairfax AC
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AUDITOR
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RNA EXECUTIVE COUNCIL

David Thomas

Daniel (Dan) L O’Connor

PRESIDENT

SENIOR VICE-PRESIDENT

BCom LLB Hons Qld MAICD

DipTchng BCAE BEdSt Qld LLB QUT
LLM Qld FAIM MAICD

David Thomas is a Justice of the Supreme
Court of Queensland and the President of
the Queensland Civil and Administrative
Tribunal. He became the RNA President
in 2011 after serving on the Council for
nine years, the last two as Senior VicePresident. He is Chair of the Council and
the Executive Committee. During the last
year, he was a member and the alternate
Chair of the Joint Management Committee
of the Brisbane Showgrounds Regeneration
Project. He is the Deputy President of
The Royal Agricultural Society of the
Commonwealth. He is the Chair of the
Queensland Maritime Museum, the Deputy
Chair of Queensland Ballet and a Director
of The Society of The Sacred Advent
Schools Pty Ltd, which is the trustee of
St Margaret’s and St Aidan’s Anglican Girls
Schools. He is an Adjunct Professor at
Murdoch University.

Dan O’Connor is Deputy President of
the Industrial Court of Queensland and
the Queensland Industrial Relations
Commission. He has been an RNA
Councillor since 2000, has served as
Honorary Treasurer and Junior VicePresident and was elected Senior VicePresident in September 2011. He is
actively involved in the RNA and oversees
many aspects of show planning including:
Chairman of the Entertainment and
Appeals and Disciplinary Committees
and a member of Horse and Arena, Joint
Stock and Woodchop Committees. He is
a Trustee of The Royal Agricultural Society
of the Commonwealth. In addition, he
is involved in a number of not-for-profit
organisations, in particular a Trustee of the
Edinburgh Declaration Trust and Chairman
of the Council of the Anglican Church
Grammar School.

Angus G Adnam
JUNIOR VICE-PRESIDENT
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Managing Director of AAA Livestock
Services Pty Ltd, Angus Adnam has
brought a wealth of experience and energy
to the RNA Council since his appointment
in November 2005. An RNA Steward and
Honorary Council Steward since 1978,
he was elected Junior Vice-President in
September 2011 and is a member on the
Executive, Beef Cattle, Boer Goats and
Meat Hall, Joint Stock, Agricultural Hall
and Industry Committees. He is Chairman
of the Food and Wine, and House and
Catering Committees.
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Catherine Sinclair

Professor Peter Little

HONORARY TREASURER

LLB LLM Qld PhD Bond FAIM FCPA

BSc MA Illinois FAICD FAIM

Peter Little was elected to the RNA
Council in March 2009, is a member of the
Executive Committee and Chairman of the
Education and the Future Committee. He
is the Chair of the HR and Remuneration
Committee, a member of the Finance,
Audit, and Development and Planning
Committees and is co-convenor of the
Future Directions Committee. The Deputy
Vice-Chancellor (Corporate Programs and
Partnerships) at the Queensland University
of Technology, he holds a Bachelor of Laws
and Master of Laws from the University
of Queensland and PhD from Bond
University Law School. He is Chair, Screen
Queensland, a Fellow of the Australian
Institute of Management, Fellow of CPA
Australia, and Fellow of Queensland
Academy of Arts and Sciences. He is a
Director of Ormiston College, consultant to
McCullough Robertson Lawyers Brisbane,
a Director of the RACQ Foundation Pty
Ltd and is a member of the Governing
Committee of the Queensland Business
Leaders Hall of Fame.

Philip S Harpham
BVSc Qld
A veterinarian and grazier by profession,
Philip Harpham has been an RNA
Councillor since 2001. He is a member of
the Executive Committee and Chairman
of Beef Cattle and Meat Hall, Joint Stock
and the Veterinary Committees. He is
also a member of the Dairy Cattle and
Dairy Goats Committees, and the Animal
Boulevard, Development and Planning,
and Food and Wine Committees.

Jan M McMillan
A Thoroughbred breeder, national
and international horse judge, owner
of racehorses and many show horses,
Jan McMillan has brought considerable
expertise to the RNA Council since her
election in 1997. In 2007, she became
the first female Ringmaster in the history
of the RNA. She is currently a member of
the Executive Committee and is also the
Chair of the Horse and Arena and Quilts
Committees. She is a member of the
Entertainment, Entries, Veterinary and Joint
Stock Committees. She is Proprietor of the
Australian Show Horse Hall of Fame and is
a member of the Queensland Racehorse
Owners Association, Sunshine Coast
Turf Club, Brisbane Racing Club, Deputy
Chairman of the Licenses Assistance
Association and is a committee
member of the Gympie Turf Club.
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Management consultant Catherine Sinclair
joined the RNA Council in 2007 and in
March 2010 was elected to the position
of Honorary Treasurer. She brings extensive
professional experience in corporate sector
strategic planning, systems and human
resource development. She has specific
experience as a Board Director in transport
and the arts and as a tribunal member in
the primary industry sector. Current
positions include Director of Frontline
Defence Services, Queensland State
President and Director of CEDA, Chair of
the Residential Tenancies Authority and
Director of The Consultancy Bureau Pty Ltd.
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Alastair D
Bassingthwaighte
A grazier and RNA Stud Cattle Exhibitor
from Yarrawonga-Waco Santa Gertrudis
Stud, Alastair Bassingthwaighte has served
on the RNA Council since 1981. He is an
active member of the Beef Cattle, Boer Goats and Meat Hall,
and Joint Stock Committees.

Lionel J Blumel
Lionel Blumel has been involved with the
RNA as a Steward since 1986 and was
elected to the RNA Council in November
2006. He is Chairman and Councillor in
Charge of the Canine Committee and
Feline Competition. He is a member of the
Animal Boulevard, Joint Stock, Leasing and Allocation, and
Veterinary Committees. He is also a Director of the Canine
Control Council (Queensland) which services the Dog World
of Queensland. He is a working member of the Samford
Show Society and past President of the National Dalmatian
Council of Australia. Lionel is a newly retired building
construction project manager and is looking forward to
having more time to devote to canine affairs.

Ian Ferguson
BA Qld JP (Qual)
Ian Ferguson is a longstanding member
of the RNA who has previously served as
an Honorary Ring Steward and Honorary
Council Steward. He stewarded in the horse
section and assisted the running of the night program for a
number of years. An RNA Councillor since 2007, he currently
serves on eight committees - Entertainment, Young Judges,
Horse and Arena, Appeals and Disciplinary, Entries, HR and
Remuneration, Leasing and Allocation, and Veterinary. He
retired as an Inspector of Police at the Ethical Standards
Command and now undertakes a range of community and
hobby activities. He has a broad background of community
involvement, currently as a member of the PCYC State Board
and Chairperson of Carindale PCYC.

Michael N Grieve
BEd NT DipEd BCAE
Michael Grieve was elected to the RNA
Council in September 2006. An education
professional and Thoroughbred breeder,
he is a member of the RNA’s Horse and
Arena, and Finance and Audit Committees. Outside of the
RNA he is a committee member and Ringmaster of the
Ipswich Show Society.

Ross H Douglas
An RNA Councillor since 2004, retired
grazier Ross Douglas is Chairman of the
Animal Boulevard and Horse Breeds
Expo Committees. He is a member of the
Appeals and Disciplinary, Finance, Audit,
Education and the Future, and Joint Stock
Committees.

Tim Fairfax AC
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Tim Fairfax joined the RNA Council in
2004 and is Chairman of the Horticulture
and Pisciculture Committees and a member
of the Appeals and Disciplinary, and Audit
Committees. A grazier and philanthropist, he is Chancellor of
the Queensland University of Technology, Deputy Chairman
National Gallery of Australia, President of the Queensland
Art Gallery Foundation, Chairman of the Salvation Army
Brisbane Advisory Board, Chairman of the Vincent Fairfax
Family Foundation and the Tim Fairfax Family Foundation,
Director of the Foundation for Rural and Regional Renewal
and Councillor of Philanthropy Australia.

Susan J Hennessey
Susan Hennessey brings to the RNA
Council considerable expertise in the area
of fine arts and management. As an RNA
exhibitor and Steward for many years, she
was elected to the RNA Council in 2001.
The first female RNA Councillor elected to
the Executive Committee, serving on this committee from
2006 to 2010, she is also a past member of the Budget and
Finance, and Marketing and Sponsorship Committees. She
also Chairs the Fine Arts Committee which includes painting
and drawing, sculpture, cookery, creative art and craft, and
photography. She is currently a member of the House &
Catering, Space & Letting, Entertainment, Young Judges,
RASC 2014 Conference, Royal Queensland Food & Wine
Show and HR & Remuneration Committees.

CertConst Hons, Licensed Builder
(NSW & QLD) GAICD
Phil Kesby was elected to the RNA Council
in October 2011 after serving as an
Honorary Council Steward and Steward
in the woodchop section for more than six years. He has
more than 33 years experience in infrastructure delivery and
property related industries, across a wide range of complex
projects. He holds close associations with the business
community and is Chairman of the Brisbane Infrastructure
Council, Board Member of Queensland Urban Utilities,
Board Member of Field Services Group and Abu Dhabi
representative for Brisbane’s Sister Cities program. He is
also the proud Chairman for the Salvation Army Red Shield
Appeal Coordination Committee.

Gary Kieseker
Dip.T B.Ed
Gary Kieseker was appointed to the RNA
Council in November 2012 after working
alongside the association in a consultancy
position for the Royal International
Convention Centre. Gary has had a distinguished career in
international hotel management, convention management
and tourism education and training. He is a leader in
strategic human resource management and has held
senior executive management positions with prominent
international hotels including Mandarin Oriental Hotel Group
and Oberoi Hotels International. His expertise and career
has spanned the globe taking him to the United States,
China, Russia, South Africa, Singapore, Indonesia, Fiji,
Malaysia, Hong Kong, the Philippines, Taiwan and Thailand.
For the past ten years Gary has been managing partner
in the international consulting company, PG International
Consulting Pty Ltd.

Duncan McInnes
Duncan brings extensive knowledge
of the dairy industry to the RNA Council.
His roles within the Council include being
Chairman of the Dairy Committee and
also a member of the Audit and Finance
Committees. He, in partnership with family,
operate a large dairy property, ‘Inverclyde’, at Harrisville
and also has interests in a lucerne and cropping farm at
Kents Lagoon in the Fassifern Valley. Duncan is a Director
of Dairy Farmers Milk Co-operative which represents 700
members across Australia, and is a past Director of Australian
Co-operative Foods (Dairy Farmers) for 12 years. He is a
Councillor for the Scenic Rim Regional Council and is also
heavily involved with local community organisations.

Gary Noller
A respected beef seed stock producer
from the Darling Downs, Gary Noller was
elected to the RNA Council in March 2010.
Before becoming an RNA Councillor he
was an active supporter of the association
having judged the Led Steer Competition
at a number of Royal Queensland Shows and as a member of
the RNA Beef Cattle, Boer Goats and Meat Hall Committees,
of which he is still a member. He is also a member of the
Entries, Joint Stock, and Young Judges Committees.

William Roberts
William Roberts is a stud merino sheep
and cattle producer and joined the RNA
Council in November 2011 following years
of involvement at the Charleville Show and
the Sheep Spectacular in Goondiwindi and
Toowoomba. He operates his property,
Victoria Downs in Morven, and has been actively involved
in committees including AgForce and the Leading Sheep
Committee for South West Queensland. He is a serving
Councillor and former past President of the Queensland
Merino Stud Sheepbreeders’ Association Incorporated,
past President of the Australian Association of Stud Merino
Breeders and past Chairman of Wool Poll.

Tim Rothwell
BA FCA MAICD
Tim Rothwell joined the Council in
October 2013, after 16 years as Chief
Financial Officer of Brisbane Airport
Corporation. He has extensive experience
in general, financial, project, property and event management
and board matters. He is a member of the board of Wesley
Mission Brisbane and Chair of the Audit and Finance
Committee. He is Chair of the Oz Harvest Brisbane
Champions Group.

Dr Bill Ryan
MB BS Qld FRACS RFD
Dr Bill Ryan is an orthopaedic spinal surgeon
and has served as an RNA Councillor since
2000. He is Chairman of the Poultry and
Pigeons, and Wine and Brandy Committees
and a member of the House and Catering,
Food and Wine, Joint Stock and Animal Boulevard
Committees. He has championed the development and
continued success of the popular food and wine show stage,
which showcases Queensland’s best produce. Prior to joining
the RNA Council, he was an Honorary Council Steward for the
Royal Queensland Wine Show.
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Brendan Christou

Michael Campbell

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

GENERAL MANAGER, FACILITIES

BBus QUT MBA Curtin CPA

BSpThy UQ BSc(Psych) UQ MBA UQ
GradDipCompDir Sydney GAICD MRMIA

Certified Practicing Accountant Brendan
commenced at the RNA in March 2004 as
the association’s Financial Controller. His
role has evolved considerably since then, with increased
responsibility seeing him promoted to Corporate Services
Manager in 2008, Chief Operating Officer in 2009 and Chief
Executive in 2012. Brendan’s previous experience spans
across the retail, engineering and financial services industries.
He completed his Master of Business Administration from
Curtin University in 2008. Brendan is a member of the
Brisbane Development Association’s Executive Committee
and is Treasurer for the Ambassadors of St John’s Cathedral.

Michael commenced in July 2013 in a
newly created role of General Manager,
Facilities. Michael brings extensive experience in both public
and private sectors across facilities, commercial property
management, major capital works, risk management and
governance roles. Michael has managed large facilities and
property programs for a number of Queensland Government
businesses and was previously lead executive of the transport
and roads property group managing 3,500 infrastructure
properties valued at over $1.8 billion. He holds Bachelor
degrees in Speech Pathology and Science (Psychology), and
completed a Master of Business Administration (University
of Queensland) and a Diploma in Company Directorship
(University of Sydney) in 1999.

Nerida Trappett
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
BBus (Accounting) QUT CPA
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Nerida joined the RNA in February 2012
as Chief Financial Officer. She is responsible
for the association’s finance, procurement,
tax compliance, regulatory compliance, insurance,
information technology and memberships, while overseeing
16 full-time staff. Nerida brings a wealth of knowledge with
more than 16 years experience across the banking, insurance,
health, travel, friendly societies and financial planning
sectors. In her previous role, Nerida was the Head of Finance
for CUA-the largest member owned financial institution in
Australia with more than $9 billion in assets.
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Veronica Carew
GENERAL MANAGER,
COMMUNICATIONS
Veronica joined the RNA in April 2010,
bringing with her 18 years experience in
media and public relations. A strategic
corporate communications manager
Veronica has 13 years experience in the not-for-profit sector,
at a state and national level, developing strategies and
campaigns to promote the interests of agriculture, education
and the over 50s in the media. Previously Veronica spent
eight years working as a journalist and editor in the Australian
print media. In her current role at the RNA, Veronica is
responsible for developing and implementing integrated
communication strategies, crisis management and public
relations initiatives, media and issues management, and the
management of internal and external communications.

Sujoy Dey

Sue Hocking

GENERAL MANAGER, OPERATIONS

GENERAL MANAGER, SALES
AND MARKETING

Diploma of Hotel Management (First
Division), University of Delhi, Post-Diploma
Business and Hotel Management School,
Luzern Switzerland
Sujoy joined the RNA in October 2011 bringing with him
more than 25 years experience in the hotel and conventions
industries across Australasia. In his current role as General
Manager of Operations, Sujoy’s responsibility ranges from
planning and executing all events, to overseeing the set-up
and operations of the Brisbane Showgrounds and Royal ICC.
Sujoy has previously been the Director of Operations for the
Borneo Convention Centre Kuching and had a 21 year career
tenure with the Adelaide Convention Centre.

Stephen Galbraith
GENERAL MANAGER, EKKA
Stephen joined the RNA in July 2012 in the
newly created position of General Manager,
Ekka, bringing experience in the operation
and management of tourism and leisure
attractions. Stephen has previously worked
for Village Roadshow Theme Parks on the Gold Coast and
Asia’s largest theme park- Sunway Lagoon in Kuala Lumpur.
He has held senior roles in diverse organisations in Australia,
Malaysia, Singapore, Vietnam, Hong Kong, China and the
Middle East.

Steven Grimes
PROJECT DIRECTOR, BRISBANE
SHOWGROUNDS REDEVELOPMENT

Advanced Dip Tourism Management,
Adelaide College of TAFE
Sue joined the RNA in September 2011
bringing with her 25 years experience, three years as
Director of Sales-Qatar National Convention Centre (QNCC)
and a 22 year career with Adelaide Convention Centre. Sue
held the role of Director-Sales and Marketing in Adelaide
before relocating to Qatar to join the pre-opening team to
manage the set-up of the sales and marketing department
at Qatar National Convention Centre. In her current role,
Sue is responsible for the development and implementation
of sales and marketing strategies for Royal ICC and the
Brisbane Showgrounds.

Helen Stockwell
GENERAL MANAGER,
HUMAN RESOURCES
BBus (Human Resources) USQ
Helen joined the RNA in December 2012
as the General Manager of Human
Resources. She is responsible for fostering and enabling
the continuous improvement of the association through
its employees. Previously, Helen was the State Human
Resources Manager, Queensland, for Coles Supermarkets
and was a key business partner for the operations leadership
team, whilst overseeing almost 18,000 team members. Helen
brings to the RNA more than 14 years of human resources
generalist experience including talent management,
workforce planning, employee relations and building high
performance cultures, specifically throughout the fast
moving consumer goods and retail industries.

Steven joined the RNA in September 2009
to oversee the association’s role with its
project partner, Lend Lease, in the delivery of the $2.9 billion
Brisbane Showgrounds Regeneration Project. His particular
focus is on project planning, management and delivery, and
stakeholder communication and consultation. Steven brings
with him more than 23 years experience in Australia, the
United Kingdom and the United States delivering awardwinning, large scale, and mixed use developments. Previous
positions include Team Leader for Lend Lease Water Alliance
on the Gold Coast, and Development Operations Manager
and Project Director for Actus Lend Lease in the United States.
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COUNCILLORS’
REPORT
The Councillors present their report together with the financial report of The Royal National
Agricultural and Industrial Association of Queensland for the year ended 31 December 2013
and auditors report thereon.
The names of the Councillors in office at any time during or since the end of the year are:

Note

Year of
Appointment

Council
meetings

Executive Committee
meetings

A

B

A

B

Mr A G Adnam – Junior Vice President

2005

11

10

10

10

Mr A D Bassingthwaighte

1981

11

8

-

-

Mr L J Blumel

2006

11

11

-

-

2004

3

1

-

-

Mr R H Douglas

2004

11

10

-

-

Mr T V Fairfax AC

2004

11

10

-

-

Mr I W Ferguson

2007

11

9

-

-

Mr M N Grieve

2006

11

8

-

-

Mr P S Harpham

2001

11

11

10

9

Mrs S J Hennessey

2001

11

9

-

-

Mr P Kesby

2011

11

10

-

-

Mr G G Kieseker

2012

11

9

-

-

Prof P C Little

2009

11

11

10

10

Mr D A McInnes

2011

11

8

-

-

Mrs J M McMillan

1997

11

8

10

7

Mr Gary Noller

2010

11

6

-

-

Mr D L O'Connor - Senior Vice President

2000

11

9

10

8

Mr W L Roberts

2011

11

11

-

-

2013

2

1

-

-

Dr W E Ryan RFD

2000

11

6

-

-

Ms C J Sinclair - Honorary Treasurer

2007

11

11

10

9

Mr D G Thomas - President

2002

11

11

10

10

Mr T M Carew

Mr T Rothwell

2

1

A - Number eligible to attend
B - Number attended

NOTES
1. Appointed October 2013
2. Resigned March 2013
The Councillors have been in office since the start of the year to the date of this report unless otherwise stated.
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COUNCILLORS’
REPORT
RESULTS AND OPERATIONS
The deficit of the association for the year amounted
to $10,732,035 (2012 deficit: $2,914,240).
During the year the Royal International Convention
Centre (Royal ICC) started operating and is the
first building to be delivered under the Redevelopment
Project with our development partners Lend Lease.
Several other buildings have commenced construction
with the first commercial and residential Buildings
underway and both are due for completion in 2015.
Sales on the residential buildings to the end of 31
December 2013 will see a projected $11,569,410 be
received by the RNA on completion of the development
and with the first commercial building now under
construction a further minimum of $5,760,000 will
be received.
The results for 2013 are significantly affected by the
recognition of interest on the loan for the Royal ICC
increasing from $39,523 to $3,519,116 and also the
recognition of the depreciation on the Royal ICC.
Neither of these items affect the working cash flow
of the business.
The critical measure of Earnings before Income Tax,
Depreciation and Amortisation (EBITDA) has moved from
a $1,205,532 loss in 2012 to a $2,357,186 loss in 2013.
This additional outlay was anticipated with the first year
of operation in the Convention Centre.
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The cash position (including Term Deposits) of the RNA
has declined from $7,422,725 in 2012 to $3,217,125
in 2013. The RNA has a working capital facility with
Queensland Treasury Corporation (QTC) of $3 Million
that has not been drawn as at 31 December 2013
resulting in the RNA having $6,217,125 in available
cash funds.
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COMPANY AND STRATEGY
FOR ACHIEVEMENT

INDEMNIFICATION OF
COUNCILLORS AND OFFICERS

The RNA’s mission is to celebrate, conserve, promote
and encourage understanding and development of
the agricultural, pastoral, horticultural, industrial,
manufacturing and cultural resources of the State of
Queensland.

The RNA has agreed to reimburse the reasonable costs
(including but not limited to legal fees) incurred by any
current or past Councillor or Officer in relation to the
performance of his or her duties as a Councillor or Officer
of the RNA provided:

The RNA’s vision focuses on the ongoing successful
staging of the Ekka at the Brisbane Showgrounds,
establishing the Brisbane Showgrounds and the
Royal ICC as Queensland’s leading events venues,
and transforming the Brisbane Showgrounds into
a destination.

(i)

the person is not charged with any offence, or if
charged, is subsequently acquitted of all charges;

(ii)

any investigations or hearings do not reveal conduct by
that person which constitutes conduct which breaches
that person’s fiduciary relationship with the RNA
whether that person is charged or not or convicted or
not;

The RNA has also embarked on a redevelopment
program to transform the Showgrounds into a vibrant
mixed use precinct that is utilised all year round. The
redevelopment will also provide the RNA with new and
improved exhibition facilities as well as other income
generating assets which form a significant part of the
RNA diversified strategy.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activity of the association is to provide
facilities and personnel to celebrate, conserve, promote
and encourage the understanding and development
of the agricultural, pastoral, horticultural, industrial,
manufacturing and cultural resources of the State of
Queensland.
The RNA achieves its objectives via a number of means,
however, its primary method is through the staging of
the Royal Queensland Show in August each year. The
Show is the state’s premier exhibition of Queensland’s
primary industries.
No significant change in the nature of these activities
occurred during the year.

(iii) the person’s conduct is not unbecoming of a person
holding the position, which that person held at the
time of the conduct.
The level of such reimbursement is to be set by the
Executive Committee.
The RNA has paid insurance premiums for Councillor’s
and Officers’ Insurance since the end of the previous year.
The Councillors have not included details of the nature of
the liabilities covered or the amount of the premium paid
in respect of the Councillors’ and Officers’ liability and
legal expenses insurance contracts as such disclosures is
prohibited under the terms of the contract.
Signed in accordance with a resolution of the members
of the Council.

Justice D G Thomas
President

COUNCILLORS’ REMUNERATION
Ms C J Sinclair
Honorary Treasurer
DATED THIS 28TH DAY OF FEBRUARY 2014
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Councillors’ receive no remuneration for their services.
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STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Note

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2013

2013 $

2012 $

11,457,885

7,911,368

Gate Receipts

6,585,857

6,032,578

Show Rents

4,358,211

4,048,165

Advertising and Sponsorship

1,424,648

1,472,289

Competition Entry Fees

774,145

781,248

Membership Subscription

429,348

433,914

Interest

102,554

385,457

REVENUE
Ground Operations and Venue Rental

Dividends

-

67,650

Other Show Revenue

1,676,311

1,438,229

Other Revenue

1,510,922

1,131,774

28,319,881

23,702,672

Ground Operations and Venue Costs

(5,914,167)

(4,519,718)

Show acts

(1,798,964)

(1,246,811)

(452,689)

(450,722)

(1,541,516)

(2,130,774)

Advertising and marketing expense

(282,621)

(368,042)

Cleaning and laundry

(975,618)

(638,392)

Consultants

(428,076)

(505,125)

(1,218,023)

(929,692)

(4,958,287)

(2,054,642)

(735,815)

(507,500)

TOTAL REVENUE

LESS: EXPENSES

Prizes and ribbons
Other show expenses

Contract labour
Depreciation and amortisation expense

3

Electricity and gas
Employee benefits expense

3

(11,854,288)

(8,557,399)

Finance costs

3

(3,519,116)

(39,523)

(741,191)

(681,697)

(1,191,297)

(989,586)

(197,306)

(283,669)

Insurance
Maintenance expense
Professional fees
Rates and utility charges

(767,815)

(709,678)

(2,475,127)

(2,003,942)

TOTAL EXPENSES

(39,051,916)

(26,616,912)

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE

(10,732,035)

(2,914,240)

-

-

(10,732,035)

(2,914,240)

Loss on disposal of available for sale financial assets

-

(83,876)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR

-

(83,876)

(10,732,035)

(2,998,116)
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE
LOSS FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES FROM PART OF THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT
31 DECEMBER 2013

Note

2013 $

2012 $

Cash and cash equivalents

4

1,915,420

3,068,458

Receivables

5

873,875

3,630,685

Inventories

6

115,934

39,578

Other financial assets

7

1,301,705

4,354,267

Other assets

8

740,447

1,045,714

4,947,381

12,138,702

9

580,266

352,021

Land held for resale

10

7,460,360

6,648,049

Property, plant and equipment

11

83,947,921

76,618,788

TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS

91,988,547

83,618,858

TOTAL ASSETS

96,935,928

95,757,560

CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NON CURRENT ASSETS
Intangible assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payables

12

3,320,897

7,881,220

Borrowings

13

251,216

-

Provisions

14

877,240

510,759

Other liabilities

15

639,047

1,374,378

5,088,400

9,766,357

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings

13

63,839,509

54,382,471

Provisions

14

136,917

130,799

Other liabilities

15

14,195,732

7,074,743

TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

78,172,158

61,588,013

TOTAL LIABILITIES

83,260,558

71,354,370

NET ASSETS

13,675,370

24,403,190

280,483

276,268

13,394,887

24,126,922

13,675,370

24,403,190

Reserves
Accumulated surplus

TOTAL MEMBERS FUNDS

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES FROM PART OF THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
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STATEMENT OF
MEMBERS’ FUNDS
Reserves
$

Accumulated
Surplus $

Total Equity
$

359,775

27,041,162

27,400,937

-

(2,914,240)

(2,914,240)

Gain or loss on disposal of available for sale financial assets
reclassified to profit or loss

(83,876)

-

(83,876)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

(83,876)

(2,914,240)

(2,998,116)

369

-

369

BALANCE AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2012

276,268

24,126,922

24,403,190

BALANCE AS AT 1 JANUARY 2013

276,268

24,126,922

24,403,190

Loss for the year

-

(10,732,035)

(10,732,035)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

-

(10,732,035)

(10,732,035)

4,215

-

4,215

280,483

13,394,887

13,675,370

BALANCE AS AT 1 JANUARY 2012
Loss for the year

Movement in funds in year

Movement in funds in year

RNA ANNUAL REPORT 2013
STATEMENT OF MEMBERS’ FUNDS

BALANCE AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES FROM PART OF THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2013

STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2013

Note

2013 $

2012 $

31,325,570

25,639,421

(35,876,997)

(28,595,378)

-

67,650

102,554

385,457

-

(1,410)

(4,448,873)

(2,504,260)

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers and employees
Dividends received
Interest received
Finance costs

NET CASH PROVIDED BY / (USED IN)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

18

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

27,067

29,608

-

7,486,660

Payment for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

(11,099,113)

(46,001,056)

Proceeds from / (payments for ) investments and held to maturity
financial assets

3,052,562

(454,420)

(812,311)

(814,049)

7,120,988

3,858,192

(1,710,807)

(35,895,065)

6,655,641

38,944,237

-

2,000,000

Interest paid on QTC Loan

(1,648,999)

-

NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES

5,006,642

40,944,237

Cash at beginning of the financial year

3,068,458

523,546

Net increase / (decrease) in cash held

(1,153,038)

2,544,912

1,915,420

3,068,458

Proceeds from sale of investments

Payments for land held for sale
Proceeds from Lend Lease

NET CASH PROVIDED BY / (USED IN)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from QTC borrowings
Proceeds from Lend Lease cash advance facility

RECONCILIATION OF CASH

4
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CASH AT END OF FINANCIAL YEAR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
NOTE 1: STATEMENT
OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING
POLICIES
The Royal National Agricultural
and Industrial Association of
Queensland (“the Association”) is
a body corporate under the Royal

National Agricultural and Industrial
Association of Queensland Act 1971
(the “RNA Act”) as amended.
The financial report was approved
by the Council as at the date of the
Councillors’ report.
The following is a summary of
the material accounting policies
adopted by the association in the
preparation and presentation of
the financial report. The accounting
policies have been consistently
applied, unless otherwise stated.

(A) BASIS OF PREPARATION
OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
The financial report is a general
purpose financial report that has
been prepared in accordance with
Australian Accounting Standards
Reduced Disclosure Requirements,
Interpretations and other authoritative
pronouncements of the Australian
Accounting Standards Board and the
RNA Act.
The RNA is a not for profit entity for the
purpose of preparation of the financial
statements.

Compliance with Australian
Accounting Standards - Reduced
Disclosure Requirements
The financial statements of the RNA
comply with the Australian Accounting
Standards - Reduced Disclosure
Requirements as issued by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board.

New and amended standards
adopted by the Association
None of the new standards and
amendments to standards that are
mandatory for the first time for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2013
affected any of the amounts recognised
in the current period or any prior
period and are not likely to affect future
periods.
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Early adoption of standards
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The RNA has elected to apply
AASB1053 Application of Tiers of
Australian Accounting Standards and
AASB2010 2 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards arising from
Reduced Disclosure Requirements,
from 1 January 2012. The adoption
of AASB1053 and AASB2010 2 allows
the Association to remove a number of
disclosures. There was no other impact
on the current financial statements.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2013

Historical Cost Convention
The financial report has been prepared
under the historical cost convention,
as modified by revaluations to fair
value for certain classes of assets as
described in the accounting policies.

(B) REVENUE
Revenue from sale of goods is
recognised when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods
have passed to the buyer and the costs
incurred or to be incurred in respect
of the transaction can be measured
reliably. Risks and rewards of ownership
are considered passed to the buyer at
the time of delivery of the goods to the
customer.
Royal Queensland Show and Ground
Operations and Venue revenue is
recognised in the year it is earned.
Other revenue includes revenue from
car parking, special exhibition charges,
signage revenue and sundry revenue
and is recognised on an accruals basis.
Revenue from the rendering of services
is recognised upon the delivery of the
service to the customers.
Dividend revenue is recognised when
the right to receive a dividend has been
established. Dividends received from
associates and joint venture entities are
accounted for in accordance with the
equity method of accounting.
Interest revenue is recognised when it
becomes receivable on a proportional
basis taking in to account the interest
rates applicable to the financial assets.
Capital grants and subsidies are
recognised in profit or loss when
control is obtained, usually upon
receipt of cash.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2013

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUED]

(i)

the entity obtains control of
the contribution or the right to
receive the contribution;

(ii)

it is probable that the economic
benefits comprising the
contribution will flow to the
entity; and

(iii) the amount of the contribution
can be measured reliably.
Contribution income is measured at
the fair value of the contributions
received or receivable. If conditions
attach to a contribution, the
recognition is deferred until the
conditions are satisfied.
All revenue is stated net of the
amount of goods and services tax
(GST).

(C) INCOME TAX
No provision for income tax has
been raised as the association is
exempt from income tax under
Section 50-40 of the Income Tax
Assessment Act 1997.

(D) CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents include
cash on hand and at banks and
bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are
shown within borrowings in current
liabilities in the statement of financial
position.

(E) INVENTORIES
Inventories are measured at the
lower of cost and net realisable
value. Inventories are primarily
consumable stores used by the
RNA in its operations.

(F) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Classification
The RNA classifies its financial assets
into the following categories: financial
assets at fair value through profit
and loss, loans and receivables,
held-to-maturity investments, and
available-for-sale financial assets.
The classification depends on the
purpose for which the instruments were
acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial instruments
at initial recognition.

Non derivative financial
instruments
Non derivative financial instruments
consist of investments in equity and
debt securities, trade and other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents,
loans and borrowings, and trade and
other payables.
Non derivative financial instruments are
initially recognised at fair value, plus
directly attributable transaction costs (if
any), except for instruments recorded
at fair value through profit and loss.
After initial recognition, non derivative
financial instruments are measured as
described below.

Available for sale
Available for sale financial assets
include any financial assets not
included in the above categories and
are measured at fair value. Unrealised
gains and losses arising from changes
in fair value are taken directly to
equity. The cumulative gain or loss is
held in equity until the financial asset
is de-recognised, at which time the
cumulative gain or loss held in equity
is recognised in profit and loss.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities include trade
payables, other creditors and loans
from third parties.
Non derivative financial liabilities
are recognised at amortised cost,
comprising original debt less principal
payments and amortisation.
Financial liabilities are classified as
current liabilities unless the group
has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting
period.

Held to maturity investments
Fixed term investments intended to
be held to maturity are classified as
held to maturity investments. They are
measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method.

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are measured at
fair value at inception and subsequently
at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method.
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Income arising from the contribution
of an asset to the entity is
recognised when, and only when,
all of the following conditions have
been satisfied:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2013

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUED]
(G) PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT

(H) LAND HELD FOR RESALE

(K) PROVISIONS

Non-current assets are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amount
will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use and a sale is considered
highly probable. They are measured at
the lower of their carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell.

Provisions are recognised when the
association has a legal or constructive
obligation, as a result of past events,
for which it is probable that an out flow
of economic benefits will result and
that outflow can be reliably measured.

Plant and equipment

(I) INTANGIBLES

Plant and equipment is measured
on the cost basis.

Other intangibles

Leases are classified at their inception
as either operating or finance leases
based on the economic substance of
the agreement so as to reflect the risks
and benefits incidental to ownership.

Each class of property, plant and
equipment is carried at cost or fair
value less, where applicable, any
accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

Property
Property is measured on a cost basis.

The carrying amount of plant and
equipment is reviewed annually
by Council to ensure it is not in
excess of the recoverable amount
from those assets. The recoverable
amount is assessed on the basis
of the expected net cash flows
which will be received from the
assets employment and subsequent
disposal. The expected net cash
flows have been discounted to
present values in determining
recoverable amounts.

Depreciation
The depreciable amount of all fixed
assets are depreciated over their
estimated useful lives commencing
from the time the asset is held
ready for use. Land and the land
component of any class of fixed
asset is not depreciated.
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Freehold land and buildings are
carried at cost or at independent
or Council valuation.
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CLASS OF
FIXED ASSET

1

Depreciation
rates1

Buildings
at cost

2-26%

Plant and
equipment at cost

7-33%

Sub-stations
and electrical
equipment

5-20%

Straight line depreciation basis

Intangible assets consist of computer
software acquired to assist in managing
the operations of the Association.
Software assets are initially recorded
at the purchase price. Other intangible
assets are amortised on a straight line
basis over the period of 3-5 years. The
balances are reviewed annually and any
balance representing future benefits
the realisation of which is considered to
be no longer probable are written off.

(J) IMPAIRMENT
Assets with an indefinite useful life are
not amortised but are tested annually
for impairment in accordance with
AASB 136. Assets subject to annual
depreciation or amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever
events or circumstances arise that
indicate that the carrying amount of
the asset may be impaired.
An impairment loss is recognised
where the carrying amount of the
asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount of an asset is
defined as the higher of its fair value
less costs to sell and value in use.

(L) LEASES

Operating leases
Lease payments for operating leases,
where substantially all the risks and
benefits remain with the lessor, are
recognised as an expense on a straight
line basis over the term of the lease.
Lease incentives received under
operating leases are recognised as a
liability and amortised on a straight line
basis over the life of the lease term.

(M) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
(i)

Short term employee benefit
obligations

Liabilities arising in respect of wages
and salaries, annual leave, accumulated
sick leave and any other employee
benefits expected to be wholly settled
within twelve months of the reporting
date are measured at their nominal
amounts based on remuneration rates
which are expected to be paid when
the liability is settled. The expected
cost of short term employee benefits
in the form of compensated absences
such as annual leave and accumulated
sick leave is recognised in the provision
for employee benefits. All other short
term employee benefit obligations are
presented as payables.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

(ii) Long term employee
benefit obligations
Liabilities arising in respect of long
service leave and annual leave which
is not expected to be settled within
twelve months of the reporting date
are measured at the present value
of the estimated future cash outflow
to be made in respect of services
provided by employees up to the
reporting date.
Employee benefit obligations are
presented as current liabilities in the
balance sheet if the entity does not
have an unconditional right to defer
settlement for at least twelve months
after the reporting date, regardless
of when the actual settlement is
expected to occur.

(N) BORROWING COSTS
Borrowing costs can include
interest, amortisation of discounts or
premiums relating to borrowings and
ancillary costs incurred in connection
with arrangement of borrowings.
Borrowing costs are expensed as
incurred, except for borrowing costs
incurred as part of the cost of the
construction of a qualifying asset are
capitalised until the asset is ready for
its intended use or sale.

(O) GOODS AND SERVICES
TAX (GST)
Revenues, expenses and assets are
recognised net of the amount of GST,
except where the amount of GST
incurred is not recoverable from the
Tax Office. In these circumstances the
GST is recognised as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part of an
item of the expense. Receivables and
payables in the statement of financial
position are shown inclusive of GST.
Cash flows are presented in the
statement of cash flows on a gross
basis, except for the GST component of
investing and financing activities, which
are disclosed as operating cash flows.

(P) COMPARATIVES
Where necessary, comparative
information has been reclassified and
repositioned for consistency with
current year disclosures.

(Q) TRUST FUNDS
The RNA from time to time receives
monies from third parties to be held
in trust and used for specific prize
payments where the particular prize
is eligible to be paid. These monies
accrue interest at the average term
deposit rate with any prizes paid
deducted from the balance of the
trust fund.

NOTE 2: CRITICAL
ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS
Certain accounting estimates include
assumptions concerning the future,
which, by definition, will seldom
represent actual results. Estimates
and assumptions based on future
events have a significant inherent risk,
and where future events are not as
anticipated there could be a material
impact on the carrying amounts of the
assets and liabilities discussed below:

(i)

Impairment

All assets are assessed for impairment
at each reporting date by evaluating
whether indicators of impairment exist
in relation to the continued use of
the asset by the RNA. If an indicator
of impairment exists the recoverable
amount of the asset is determined.

(ii) Useful lives of property, plant
and equipment
Useful lives of property, plant
and equipment are based upon
expectations of the consumption of the
assets at their acquisition date and are
re assessed annually. The actual useful
lives of property, plant and equipment
may vary for various reasons from the
useful lives adopted for depreciation
purposes.
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NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUED]

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2013
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
NOTE 3: OPERATING SURPLUS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2013

2013 $

2012 $

27,067

28,586

-

58,443

Buildings

3,255,043

1,154,234

Plant and equipment

1,507,181

735,976

23,973

23,581

4,786,197

1,913,791

172,090

140,851

57,000

20,227

4,854,177

1,112,664

(1,335,061)

(1,073,141)

3,519,116

39,523

(LOSS)/SURPLUS BEFORE INCOME TAX HAS BEEN DETERMINED AFTER :
Net gain on disposal of non current assets:
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment
Profit on sale of investments
Depreciation

Sub stations and electrical equipment

Amortisation of non current assets
Software
Bad debts
Trade receivables
Financed Costs
Interest and Finance charges paid/payable for financial liabilities not at fair
value through the profit and loss
Amount Capitalised

(a)

Amount Expensed

Capitalised Borrowing costs – The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs
to be capitalised is the effective interest rate applicable to the entity’s borrowings over the life of the loan.
(2013: 6.198%, 2012: 6.198%)
(a)

Cost of Goods Sold
Inventory

2,838,043

1,560,514

10,956,770

7,901,829

Superannuation expense

902,033

578,270

Other employee benefits

(4,515)

77,300

11,854,288

8,557,399

Employee benefits:

RNA ANNUAL REPORT 2013
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Short term benefits

56

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
NOTE 4: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2013

2013 $

2012 $

41,988

11,920

1,873,432

3,056,538

1,915,420

3,068,458

Trade receivables

740,082

1,824,668

Provision for impairment

(61,888)

(4,888)

678,194

1,819,780

92,483

155,733

103,198

1,655,172

873,875

3,630,685

4,888

24,756

Charge for the year

57,000

(19,868)

Closing balance at 31 December

61,888

4,888

115,934

39,578

1,301,705

4,351,694

-

2,573

1,301,705

4,354,267

Cash on hand
Cash at bank

NOTE 5: RECEIVABLES
CURRENT

Other receivables
GST receivable

IMPAIRMENT OF TRADE RECEIVABLES
Opening balance at 1 January

NOTE 6: INVENTORIES
CURRENT
At cost
Finished goods

NOTE 7: OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
CURRENT
Held to maturity financial assets
Term deposits and bank bills
Cash Management Trust
Total held to maturity financial assets

NOTE 8: OTHER ASSETS
CURRENT
Prepayments
Restricted cash - RNADF (a)
Other current assets

414,207

719,866

-

613

326,270

325,235

740,447

1,045,714

(a) Restricted cash - RNADF
    The RNA development fund (RNADF) is an account established to receive Land Entitlement and other RNA Project
Entitlements and to pay RNA Project Costs and other expenses relevant to the development project.
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Term deposits and bank bills
Short term bank bills and term deposits at 31 December 2013 mature between 60 and 120 days and pay interest
between 3.4% and 3.8% (2012: mature between 60 to 90 days and pay an interest between 4.3% and 4.7%).
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NOTE 9: INTANGIBLE ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2013

2013 $

2012 $

1,682,991

1,282,656

(1,102,725)

(930,635)

580,266

352,021

Opening balance

352,021

343,070

Additions

400,335

149,802

Amortisation expense

(172,090)

(140,851)

Closing balance

580,266

352,021

Software at cost
Accumulated amortisation and impairment

RECONCILIATIONS
Reconciliation of the carrying amounts of intangible assets at the beginning
and end of the current financial year

Software at cost

NOTE 10: LAND HELD FOR RESALE
Land held for resale	

7,460,360

6,648,049

Land held for resale comprises capitalised expenses in relation to the redevelopment project including but not limited
to legal expenses, consultants fees and salaries and wages.

NOTE 11: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
LAND
Freehold land
At cost

96,880

96,880

96,949,389

28,095,798

(22,744,676)

(19,489,632)

74,204,713

8,606,166

20,226,264

18,307,530

(11,124,977)

(9,617,797)

9,101,287

8,689,733

2,645,445

2,644,730

(2,318,206)

(2,294,233)

327,239

350,497

217,802

58,875,512

9,646,328

67,915,742

83,947,921

76,618,788

BUILDINGS AND GROUND IMPROVEMENTS
At cost
Accumulated depreciation

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Plant and equipment at cost
Accumulated depreciation
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Sub stations and electrical equipment at cost
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Accumulated depreciation

Work in progress - construction
Total plant and equipment
Total property, plant and equipment
REFER NOTE 13 FOR INFORMATION ON ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITY.
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NOTE 11: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT [CONTINUED]

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2013

2013 $

2012 $

Opening carrying amount

96,880

96,880

Closing carrying amount

96,880

96,880

8,606,166

7,402,937

Transfer from WIP. Construction and other related equipment

58,827,899

-

Additions

10,025,691

2,357,463

Depreciation expense

(3,255,043)

(1,154,234)

74,204,713

8,606,166

Opening carrying amount

8,689,733

5,853,577

Additions

1,918,735

3,573,152

Disposals

-

(1,022)

Depreciation expense

(1,507,181)

(735,974)

Closing carrying amount

9,101,287

8,689,733

350,497

374,078

715

-

Depreciation expense

(23,973)

(23,581)

Closing carrying amount

327,239

350,497

58,875,512

14,932,502

170,189

43,943,010

(58,827,899)

-

217,802

58,875,512

RECONCILIATIONS
Reconciliation of the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment at the
beginning and end of the current financial year

FREEHOLD LAND

BUILDINGS
Opening carrying amount

Closing carrying amount

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

SUB STATIONS AND ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT
Opening carrying amount
Additions

Opening carrying amount
Additions
Transfer completed WIP to Buildings
Closing carrying amount

CURRENT VALUATION OF LAND AND BUILDINGS
The Association is incorporated under the Royal National Agricultural and Industrial Association of Queensland Act 1971
(“the Act”) and operates under the provisions of that Act. In accordance with the Act, the Association cannot sell its land
without the approval of the Governor in Council. In the event of an RNA insolvency, the balance site (approx 14 ha which
has not been made available for private development) would be divested automatically to the State Government.
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WORK IN PROGRESS - CONSTRUCTION AND OTHER RELATED EQUIPMENT

59

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
NOTE 12: PAYABLES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2013

2013 $

2012 $

814,921

5,774,808

2,505,976

2,106,412

3,320,897

7,881,220

CURRENT
Unsecured liabilities
Trade creditors (a)
Sundry creditors and accruals

(b)

(a)
Trade creditors includes $nil (2012: $5,065,730) which is included in property, plant and equipment (work in progress).
Refer note 11.
(b)
Sundry creditors and accruals include accrued interest of $142,812 (2012: $141,363) and accrued retentions of $258,905
(2012: $258,905) which are included in property, plant and equipment (work in progress). Refer note 11.

NOTE 13: BORROWINGS
CURRENT
Secured liabilities
Queensland Treasury Corporation loan

251,216

-

251,216

-

61,736,896

52,344,358

2,102,613

2,038,113

63,839,509

54,382,471

NON-CURRENT		
Secured liabilities
Queensland Treasury Corporation loan
Cash Advance Facility - Lend Lease

TERMS AND CONDITIONS
QUEENSLAND TREASURY CORPORATION LOAN
The RNA has entered into a loan agreement with Queensland Treasury Corporation for $65 million to assist in the financing
of new facilities to be delivered as part of the RNA redevelopment. The loan is secured by a first registered mortgage over
the balance site (i.e. the part of the RNA site that is not within the private development lots to be sold in accordance with
the Project Development Agreement) and a first ranking charge over all of the assets of the RNA. As at 31 December 2013
$59,000,000 (2012: $52,344,358) had been drawn down and $2,988,112 relates to capitalised interest costs recognised using
the effective interest rate method.
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Repayments of the principal are scheduled over an 11 year period with the first repayments to be made in 2016. Interest is
variable until 10 January 2014 when it converts to a fixed rate of 7.105%. Interest is paid monthly whilst the loan is variable
and then quarterly once the loan is transferred to the fixed facility.
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The RNA also has a working capital facility with QTC to the value of $3 million as at 31 December 2013 (2012: Nil). This facility
was not drawn at balance date.

CASH ADVANCE FACILITY - LEND LEASE
As part of the RNA Redevelopment Project, Lend Lease has agreed to provide a standby cash advance facility of up to $10
million to meet funding shortfalls, essentially for Levies and RNA Project Costs. The term and conditions of this facility are
set out in a Project Finance Agreement. This facility will be repaid by future cash flows from the Redevelopment Project. The
facility end date is the date of the final payment of all ULDA levies under the Redevelopment project. Interest is charged on
the same basis as the Queensland Treasury Corporation Loan. Interest is not required to be repaid until there are sufficient
funds in the RNADF to repay the interest. As at 31 December 2013 $2,000,00 had been drawn down. Interest of $102,613
(2012: $38,113) has been capitalised to the loan.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
NOTE 14: PROVISIONS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2013

2013 $

2012 $

Redevelopment

234,000

-

Employee benefits

643,240

510,759

Total Current Provision

877,240

510,759

136,917

130,799

CURRENT

NON CURRENT
Employee benefits

During the year a provision of $234,000 for additional redevelopment costs was recognised. This has been included in
Property, Plant and Equipment.

NOTE 15: OTHER LIABILITIES
CURRENT
Venue hire rent and bond

550,800

1,208,759

87,804

165,619

443

-

639,047

1,374,378

14,195,732

7,074,743

Lend Lease initial payments (a)

5,000,000

4,000,000

Contribution to public realm development (b)

6,196,856

1,875,926

Other
Restricted cash - RNADF

NON CURRENT
Deferred revenue (i)
(i) Deferred revenue comprises:

Advance land payments (c)

2,998,876

1,198,817

14,195,732

7,074,743

(a) Lend Lease initial payments
   Under the Project Development Agreement the Developer is liable to pay to the RNA the sum of $6 million as a
    contribution towards the RNA’s costs and expenses of entering into the Redevelopment Agreement. These payments are
    made at intervals during the first 48 months of the project.
(b) Contribution to public realm development
   This amount relates to payments received from the developer for infrastructure works in relation to the Redevelopment               
Project, carried out by the RNA.
(c) Advance land payments - Lend Lease
    Amounts owing to Lend Lease pursuant to the Master Plan Project Development Agreement (PDA) are secured by:
- a mortgage over the land designated for redevelopment under the PDA
- a conditional contract for RNA to transfer undeveloped portions of the redevelopment land. Settlement of this
contract only occurs if the PDA is terminated because of RNA default and Lend Lease elects to complete that
contract instead of enforcing its mortgage security.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
NOTE 16: RESERVES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2013

Note

2013 $

2012 $

Available for sale financial asset reserve

16(a)

-

-

Trust funds

16(b)

280,483

276,268

280,483

276,268

Opening balance

-

83,876

Change in fair value of available for sale financial assets, net of tax

-

-

Gain or loss on disposal recognised in profit or loss

-

-

Transfers

-

83,876

Closing balance

-

-

276,268

275,899

4,215

369

280,483

276,268

1,877,484

2,298,968

Post employment benefits

151,422

32,386

Other long term benefits

67,937

171,537

2,096,843

2,502,891

(A) AVAILABLE FOR SALE FINANCIAL ASSET RESERVE
The available for sale financial asset reserve is used to record
movements in fair values of financial assets classified as available
for sale.

Movements in reserve

(B) TRUST FUNDS
Trust funds consist of funds received from third parties to be held in
trust and used for specific prize payments. The transfer in the year
comprises interest earned on the funds in the year calculated at the
average term deposit rate less prizes paid from the fund in the year.

Movements in reserve
Opening balance
Movement in funds in year
Closing balance

NOTE 17: KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL COMPENSATION
Compensation received by key management personnel of the Association
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COUNCILLORS
At the Association’s Council meeting on 27 October 2000, it was resolved that ‘Country Councillors’ who travel a distance
of more than 100km radius from Brisbane be reimbursed their travel expenses based on Australian Taxation Office rates, as
published, and be able to claim overnight accommodation where applicable for attending official meeting of the Council and
the Executive Committee. At 31 December 2013 there were 6 Councillors (2012: 6) eligible to claim travel expenses.
Councillors do not receive remuneration for their membership of Council.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
NOTE 18: CASH FLOW INFORMATION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2013

2013 $

2012 $

(10,732,035)

(2,914,240)

4,958,288

2,054,652

(27,067)

(28,586)

-

(58,443)

64,503

38,113

Interest expensed on loans included in financing activities

1,648,999

-

Adjustment to finance costs to recognise borrowings at amortised costs

1,805,591

-

4,215

369

1,205,896

(1,403,262)

(Increase) / decrease in other assets

304,624

(400,568)

(Increase) / decrease in inventories

(76,360)

7,602

(3,023,775)

946,118

(720,351)

(825,161)

138,599

79,146

(4,448,873)

(2,504,260)

RECONCILIATION OF CASH FLOW FROM OPERATIONS WITH
SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR
Loss for the year

ADJUSTMENTS AND NON CASH ITEMS
Depreciation & amortisation
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Net gain on disposal of financial instruments
Interest Capitalised on Loan

Net increase in Trust funds

CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(Increase) / decrease in receivables

Increase / (decrease) in payables
Increase / (decrease) in unearned income
Increase / (decrease) in provisions
Cash flows from operating activities

NOTE 19: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The name of each person holding the position of Councillor of the Association during the year is listed in the Councillors’
Report.
Mr DG Thomas was a partner in the law firm of Minter Ellison until August 2013 at which time he was appointed Supreme
Court Justice. During the period, Justice Thomas held the position of Councillor of the Association, the Association paid
legal fees to Minter Ellison amounting to $172,371 (2012: $228,873).

Other transactions between the Association and Councillors and their related entities are immaterial in nature and occur
with normal customer/supplier relationships on terms and conditions no more favourable than those which it is reasonable
to expect would have been adopted if dealings with non Councillor related entities at arm’s length in the
same circumstances.
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Mr GG Kieseker is a partner at consulting firm PG International. The Association paid consulting fees to PG International
amounting to $13,381 (2012: $8,741).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
NOTE 20: CAPITAL AND LEASING COMMITMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2013

2013 $

2012 $

69,924

69,924

157,329

227,253

227,253

297,177

Royal International Convention Centre

-

2,324,350

The Plaza

-

5,859,757

Furniture and equipment for Royal International Convention Centre

-

564,593

-

8,748,700

not later than one year

124,192

33,595

later than one year and not later than five years

287,901

91,230

later than five years

532,611

25,104

944,704

149,929

(A) OPERATING LEASE PAYABLE COMMITMENTS
Non cancellable operating leases contracted for but not capitalised in the
financial statements:
Payable
not later than one year
later than one year and not later than five years

The Association has a ten year lease with QR (commencing 25 August 2010)
for rental of a fire escape and other areas located on QR land, as well as a
5 year lease with QR (commencing 1 November 2010) for rental of subway
access for vehicles and pedestrians located on QR land.

(B) CAPITAL EXPENDITURE COMMITMENTS

(C) OPERATING LEASE RECEIVABLE COMMITMENTS
Receivable

The Association has re-negotiated a 10 year lease with Telstra Corporation for ground rental on RNA land commencing
1 March 2010. The Association has re negotiated a five year lease with Vodafone Network for ground rental on RNA
land commencing 1 September 2009. The Association has also negotiated a new 10 year lease with oOh!Media for
signage, a 2 year restaurant and office accommodation lease with Lend Lease and a 20 year Telstra lease for additional
Telecommunication infrastracture.

NOTE 21: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
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As at reporting date, there are no known contingent liabilities
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NOTE 22: EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO REPORTING DATE
On the 10th of January 2014, the QTC Loan rolled into a fixed rate facility at 7.105 % as detailed in Note 13. This facility was
reduced to $59 Million, instead of the original value of $65 Million. A Break fee for the $6 Million was incurred at a cost of
$796,789 and is due to be paid by the 31st of March 2014.

COUNCILLORS’
DECLARATION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2013

In the opinion of the Council the financial report as set out
on pages 48 - 64:
1.

Presents fairly the financial position of The Royal
National Agricultural and Industrial Association of
Queensland as at 31 December 2013 and performance
for the year ended on that date in accordance with the
Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure
Requirements and other mandatory professional
reporting requirements.

2.

At the date of this statement, there are reasonable
grounds to believe that The Royal National Agricultural
and Industrial Association of Queensland will be able
to pay its debts as and when they become due and
payable.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution
of the Council and is signed for and on behalf of the
Council by:

Justice D G Thomas
President

Ms C J Sinclair
Honorary Treasurer
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DATED THIS 28TH DAY OF FEBRUARY 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE ROYAL
NATIONAL AGRICULTURAL AND INDUSTRIAL ASSOCIATION OF QUEENSLAND
We have audited the accompanying financial report of
The Royal National Agricultural and Industrial Association
of Queensland, which comprises the statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2013, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of members’ funds
and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes
comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information, and the Councillors’ declaration.

Councillors’ Responsibility for
the Financial Report
The Councillors of The Royal National Agricultural and
Industrial Association of Queensland are responsible for the
preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view
in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced
Disclosure Requirements and for such internal control as the
Councillors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of the financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial report of The Royal National
Agricultural and Industrial Association of Queensland is
in accordance with the Royal National Agricultural and
Industrial Association of Queensland Act 1971 (as amended)
including;
(a)

giving a true and fair view of the entity’s financial
position as at 31 December 2013 and of its
performance for the year ended on that date; and

(b)

complying with Australian Accounting Standards Reduced Disclosure Requirements.

PITCHER PARTNERS

Auditor’s Responsibility

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
financial report that gives a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the Councillors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial report.

J.J Evans
Partner
Brisbane, Queensland
28 February 2014
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Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial
report based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards
require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements
relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is
free from material misstatement.
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■■

■■

■■

■■

■■

■■

■■

■■

■■
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THE CENTRE OF SOCIAL ACTIVITIES

INTRODUCTION OF QUEENSLAND’S
NEWEST TECHNOLOGIES

THE FIRST RAILWAY STATION

■■

■■

■■

THE FIRST EXHIBITION

■■
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The first Council included the Headmaster
of Brisbane Grammar, the General Manager
of the Queensland National Bank and the
Editor of the Brisbane Courier and the
Queenslander.*

1877

1876

■■

The ‘National Agricultural and Industrial
Association of Queensland’ was formed
by a group of colonists.

1878

■■

FIRST EKKA RIDE

1879

THE NATIONAL AGRICULTURAL
AND INDUSTRIAL ASSOCIATION
OF QUEENSLAND

1887 1887 1882

1875

  HISTORICAL TIMELINE

■■

■■

The Intercolonial Exhibition of 1876 was
held at Bowen Park with an estimated
15,000–17,000 people attending out of
Brisbane’s population at the time of just
20,600.
5,000 people charged the turnstiles - chaos
ensued until the mounted troopers were
called to drive back the crowd.
Visitors to the first show were treated to
more than 1,000 exhibits.
The show received 1,700 competition
entries in more than 600 classes.
Entry tickets were large and square for
major patrons, circular for subscribers, blue
for judges and red for stewards.*
Staff included a nightwatchman,
40 stewards and more than 30 judges.*
Entry to the grounds in the morning was a
half-crown or visitors could wait until after
the official opening when the cost of a ticket
fell to one shilling.*
Competitors were usually charged two
shillings and sixpence per entry.*
At the first show there was a competition
for the best manure plus the fastest walking
farm horse.*

■■

■■

Only three breeds of cattle were displayed
at the first show—Durham, Hereford and
Devon.*

The total value of prizes and medals was
between £500 and £600.*

The showgrounds became the centre of
the city’s social activities – musical and
drama groups, football, cricket, lacrosse,
athletics and cycling all had headquarters
on grounds.

Ekka patrons were amazed by telephones,
microphones, electric lights and even an
electric thief detector.

The first railway station opened at the
showgrounds – as an extension of the
Sandgate line.

MAIN PAVILION DESTROYED
■■

Main Pavilion (corner of Bowen Bridge Road
and Gregory Terrace) was destroyed by fire.

MAIN PAVILION REPLACED
■■

The largest prize up for grabs was 25
guineas.*
The show closed at midnight on Monday 28
August, following a controversial decision to
open on the Sunday.*

Introduction of the first ride in Sideshow
Alley—a merry-go-round.*

■■

Main Pavilion replaced with a new brick
building – now referred to as the ‘Old
Museum’ – on the corner of Bowen Bridge
Road and Gregory Terrace. It contains
1,300,000 bricks and was completed in 23
weeks. 300 men were constantly at work
during its construction. The building was
equipped with a huge pipe organ by Wallis
and Co of London.
The first district exhibits contest was held—
nine regions competed for a prize pool of
£175.*

The first fireworks display occurred in
the Main Arena, beginning another show
tradition.*

JOHN MACDONALD
STAND BUILT

1926 1923

■■

AMERICAN AVIATOR
American aviator Arthur Burr Stone used
the Main Arena to take off and land a Metz
Bleriot Monoplane for the first ever flight
over Brisbane.

TOOWOOMBA’S AUSTRAL HALL
■■

Toowoomba’s Austral Hall was bought for
£1,500 and re-erected at the showgrounds,
making it the largest building of its type in
the state.

EKKA CANCELLED
DUE TO INFLUENZA
EPIDEMIC
EDWARD,
PRINCE OF WALES
VISITS THE EKKA

ERNEST BAYNES
STAND BUILT
NATIONAL SPEEDWAY
■■

■■

■■

1928

■■

The National Speedway opened at the
RNA Showgrounds.
The Queensland Country Women’s
Association made its first appearance
at the Ekka.
The first night time ring program was
held following the introduction of
electric lighting.*

SIR DONALD BRADMAN
TEST DEBUT
■■

■■

1930’s

The Main Arena played host to the test
debut of the world’s greatest batsman
Sir Donald Bradman. Bradman
was playing in the first Australia
versus England International Test in
Queensland; he scored a total of 19
runs.
The first international rugby league
game was held on the Main Arena.

GREAT DEPRESSION
■■

New competitions provided fresh
entertainment for visitors during
the depths of the Great Depression
including goat races which attracted
100 competitors.*

THE RNA
■■

The prefix ‘Royal’ was added to the
association’s name after it was granted
under warrant from His Majesty King
George V.
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■■

The show was cancelled as the grounds
were used as a staging depot during World
War II.

EKKA FOOD TRADITIONS
■■

The now symbolic Ekka fairy floss, butter
board sandwiches, Strawberry Sundaes and
dagwood dogs were introduced.*

QUEEN ELIZABETH II AND
PRINCE PHILLIP VISITED
THE EKKA

1971 1966 1964

WORLD WAR II

ANIMAL NURSERY AT
THE EKKA INTRODUCED

1989

INDUSTRIAL PAVILION
OPENED

LIVID MUSIC FESTIVAL

2003 2000 1996

1954 1950 1937 1937

[CONTINUED]

COMMERCE AND
EXHIBITION BUILDINGS
CONSTRUCTED

HUMAN CANNONBALL
APPEARED AT THE EKKA
FOR THE FIRST TIME*
INTERNATIONAL SPRINGBOK TOUR
■■

■■

The International Springbok Tour was held
at the RNA Showgrounds with a two metre
chain wire fence erected to separate the
players from the spectators.

The renowned Livid Music Festival was held
at the RNA Showgrounds for the first time,
which later featured performances
by superstar group Oasis and Green Day
in 2000 and British music icons The Cure
in 2002.

SIDESHOW ALLEY AND WOODCHOP
■■

The Inner City Bypass was constructed, and
Sideshow Alley and the woodchop arena
were redeveloped.

REDEVELOPMENT
VISION BEGAN

* Historical information and statistics sourced
from ‘Showtime - A History of the Brisbane
Exhibition’ by Joanne Scott and Ross Laurie,2008;
and RNA Archives.

■■

2012

Lend Lease was selected as the RNA’s
development partner for the $2.9 billion
RNA Showgrounds Regeneration Project.
The first district exhibits contest was held—
nine regions competed for a prize pool of
£175.*

■■

■■

MASTER PLAN APPROVAL
■■

The RNA Showgrounds Master Plan was
approved by the Urban Land Development
Authority paving way for construction to
start.
One million people attended events at the
RNA Showgrounds in a calendar year.

CONSTRUCTION STARTED
■■

■■

■■

■■

■■

■■

■■

British heavy metal band Iron Maiden and
world renowned guitarist Slash performed
at Soundwave music festival which attracted
a crowd of 45,000.

New Ekka ticket bundles were introduced and
resulted in a 400 per cent increase in pre-sales.
2012 Australian of the Year and Academy
Award-winning actor and producer Geoffrey
Rush attended the opening day of the Ekka.
In true Queensland style, a cricket match
involving cricketing greats Adam Gilchrist,
Glenn McGrath, Ian Healy, Andy Bichel and
Jimmy Maher, took place on the Main Arena on
the final day of the Ekka.
45,000 revellers made their way to Soundwave
to enjoy performances by System of a Down,
Marilyn Manson, Slipknot and Limp Bizkit.

BRISBANE SHOWGROUNDS LAUNCHED
■■

■■

■■

Construction commenced on the Industrial
Pavilion as part of the RNA Showgrounds
Regeneration Project.
The first release of residential apartments at
‘The Green’ went on sale and work began
on the related infrastructure.

In an Australian first, Ekka fans were able to
customise their own fireworks on the show’s
free interactive fireworks iPhone app.

■■
■■

The RNA Showgrounds officially changes its
name to Brisbane Showgrounds to create an
easily identifiable and unifying brand.
Royal ICC opened and held its first events in
March 2013.
Construction began on K1, the first of the
commercial towers at Kings Gate commercial
precinct, and on The Green residential
apartments.
Over 400,000 guests through the Ekka gates.
The Royal Queensland Show took home the
prestigious Best in Show title, along with
13 other awards, at the 2013 International
Association of Fairs & Expositions Awards
(IAFE Awards).

Grammy Award-winners Wolfmother closed
the Ekka’s concert series in front of a
capacity crowd.
The ground floor of the Royal International
Convention Centre housed the Ekka’s
canine competition, Agricultural Hall and
horticulture exhibits.
Construction began on the new 7,000m2
$7.7 million Plaza.
The RNA was inducted into the Queensland
Business Leaders Hall of Fame for its
contribution to the state’s economic and
social history.
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2011

■■

REDEVELOPMENT PARTNER

■■

2012

■■

■■

2013

2009 2005
2010

RNA SHOWGROUNDS
MASTER PLAN
LAUNCHED
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